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The Annual Report 2009 epitomizes the Sustainable Growth

of Central Depository Company through a brilliant symbolic

representation, taking inspiration from the foundation-

laying initiatives and market-shaping values set forth by

Central Depository Company. Initiatives that have

practically ensured Capital Market’s continued growth

during the most volatile economic times in recent history.

Values that have helped us surface as the most Resilient

entity of the Pakistani Capital Market surviving through

the toughest tests of time.

This year’s theme indicates that we have maintained a

perfect Balance in our workings throughout our evolution

and have also ensured equally Proportionate

relationships with all market participants, creating harmony

and equation in the Capital Market. Our initiatives have

played a key role in bringing together all players, enabling

them to join forces within a single Network. This Unity

between all elements has helped achieve synergy for

common purpose and interests, leading to improved

profitabil i ty,  enhanced strength, increased growth

opportunities and wide-scale development of the market.

Annual Report

Central Depository Company

Sustainable

rowthg
Year 2008 – 09 was a tough test of endurance,

stability and determination for the Pakistani

Capital Market.
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balancein
approach

A

Becoming a leader requires more than a single

approach. It requires an assembly of all

elements and even more. The pilgrimage from

a rudimentary depository to a market-reforming

leader necessitated a balance in approach that

takes into account the infrastructure needs

and investment potential of the market.

Clearly evident in the consistently paced and

stable organizational expansion, introduction

of diverse services at regular intervals and

catering to a wide range of capital and equity

market participants, CDC strikes the perfect

equilibrium in the evolution of the capital market.

In the course of strengthening infrastructure

and providing ever greater levels of system

efficiencies, CDC has helped develop a steadily

functioning capital  market mechanism.
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roportion
CDC has enabled people of all backgrounds and
ability levels to experience a new spirit of
partnership, common endeavor and ‘Playing to win’
ethos in every aspect of their business. We have a
direct influence in creating, shaping, supporting and
regenerating the capital market community in
Pakistan. We have not only built platforms, provided
infrastructure, initiated dialogues and benchmarked
industry standards but have also helped other market
components grow and establish through our
continuous help. Our communal goal and vision for
a prospering future is evident from our persevering
support to government, private, public and
voluntary sectors.

roles

ate

‘ S h a r e d  g o a l s ,  c l e a r  &  e q u a l
responsibilities, everyone playing their
part’ are the real needs of business
communities worldwide. Assigning
proportionate roles to all players in the
market has helped integrate people,
processes, systems and structures on
a single platform
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networkto youradvantage

An established network provides its users

with  unique capabi l i t ies  and an

indigenous platform where information

and resources can be shared and

benefited from. It outperforms, above and

beyond, what the individuals and their

organizations can deliver independently.

For capital market entities, CDC acts as

a point of focus and an integral force that

connects them together into a network.

Taking advantage of collaborative

technologies, especially those offering

shared communication and information,

CDC interacts directly with clients and

the market as a whole, all round the year

through the Central Depository System

and multi-channel customer support

services as well as with stakeholders,

potential customers & general public,

both locally and abroad, through face-to-

face dialogue in road shows.
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resilienceto weatherthe storms

Resilience is all about being able to withstandcrises & overcome the unexpected. For anyindividual, nation or organization, facingadversity with courage shows their strength of character.

CDC surfaced as one of the elite group of organizations that
weathered global economic recession and financial crisis
with no capital losses incurred. Since its inception, resilience
was the watchword at CDC. Measures of prudence in capital
expenditures, diversification of services portfolio, disaster
preparedness and critical foresight enabled us to continue
our journey on the road to sustainable growth and development.
We have learned not only to absorb the shocks but also to
evolve with them. At CDC, we think and prepare for adverse
times and embrace changing times as thriving not threatening.
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For organizations today, it’s becoming

more important to adopt integrated

discipline. Hence, when the will and

the determination exist, individuals

and organizat ions of  diverse

backgrounds and varied interests can

and do work together in unity for the

achievement of common goals.

u among

elements

nity
As the front runner in Capital Market

collaboration, CDC has put market’s benefits

first, ahead of company profits and prosperity.

Acting as a binding force that unites all market

constituents - the regulator (SECP), the stock

exchanges, the clearing company (NCCPL)

and most importantly the market itself,

comprising of Issuers, R/TAs, Participants,

Brokers, AMCs, Mutual Funds and investors

for the betterment and strengthening of the

Capital  Market,  CDC has created an

environment that boosts mutual survival, trust

and dependability.
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CDC is committed to provide secured and dependable services to the

capital and financial markets in an efficient and cost effective manner

comparable to best international practices. The Company’s aim is to be the

centre of excellence by continuously employing the state-of-the-art

technology available and best talent in the country while maintaining good
corporate governance in its working. It is committed to provide its employees

an environment of professional and personal growth.

Missionstatement



To be a leading national institution

providing quality services to capital

and financial markets stimulating

economic growth.

17

Visionstatement
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Core
Our corporate values represent the core priorities in the organization’s culture.
Adherence to these values makes it possible for us to continue on the road to sustainable
development. Dispensing with our corporate responsibility, we are able to honour our
commitments to our clients, partners, shareholders and to our most valuable resource,
our employees.

values
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We are reliable & trustworthy for all our stakeholders

We ensure authenticity and security of information

We are fair & honest in all our dealings

We take responsibility for our actions

We ensure complete confidentiality of

information entrusted to us

We strive to perform to the best of our abilities

Our policies & procedures are clearly defined,

well communicated and applied equally to all

We make adequate disclosure of company information

We strongly adhere to the best practices of

Corporate Governance

We promote a culture of open communication at work

We strive for innovative, optimal solutions for clients

and internal workings at all times in line with

international best practices

We remain proactively sensitive to the clients’ and

market needs

Reliability

Integrity

Transparency

Efficiency

19



Mr. Muhammad Bashir Janmohammed
Chairman

Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Adnan Afridi
Director

Mr. Anjum Zahoor Iqbal
Director

Mr. Ayaz Ahmed
Director

Haji Ghani Haji Usman
Director

Mr. Mohammed Minaz Bhuiya
Director

Mr. Muhammad Yasin Lakhani
Director

Mr. Omar Khalil Malik
Director

Mr. Rafaquat Ali Chaudhary
Director

Mr. Tariq Iqbal Khan
Director

Mr. Tariq Rafi
Director
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Muhammad Bashir Janmohammed
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Adnan Afridi
Director

Mr. Bashir Janmohammed is a Fellow Member of The Institute of Chartered

Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP).  He also holds degrees in Commerce and

Law.

He is the Chairman and Director of Westbury Group of Companies, PICIC

Insurance Company Limited, Dalda Foods Limited, Mapak Edible Oils (Pvt.)

Limited, Mapak Qasim Bulkers (Pvt.) Limited and FWQ Enterprises (Private)

Limited.  He is also the Council Member of the International Seed Crushers

Association (UK), Federation Chamber of Commerce & Industries and Life

Member of Federation of Pakistan Chambers of Commerce & Industry (FPCCI).

Mr. Bashir Janmohammed is the Chairman of Kharadar General Hospital,

Chairman, Executive Council of Institute of Business Management and

Chairman, Janmohammed Dawood Trust.

Mr. Janmohammed is also a socially active Philanthropist, playing an active

role in the social welfare of citizens.

Mr. Adnan Afridi is the Managing Director of The Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee)

Limited (KSE) since 2007. He has a degree in Economics (A.B, Magna Cum Laude,

1992) from Harvard University and a degree in Corporate Law (JD, Magna Cum Laude in

1995) from Harvard Law School.

Mr. Afridi has over 15 years of experience in managing businesses in emerging

markets.  He started his career with Monitor Company, USA as a strategy consultant,

designing business units and corporate strategies for Fortune 50 companies in the

financial services sector. Over the past ten years, Mr. Afridi has been facilitating

foreign direct investment into Pakistan by assisting in Private Equity transactions,

including key privatization transactions.  Prior to joining KSE, he served as the Chief

Executive Officer of The Overseas Investors Chamber of Commerce and Industry

(OICCI), a company representing major foreign investors operating in Pakistan. OICCI

membership contributes over 14% to the GNP of Pakistan and over one third of all

revenues collected by Government of Pakistan. 

Mr. Afridi serves on the Board of Directors of Central Depository Company (CDC)

and National Clearing Company.  He is also the Chairman of the South Asian

Federation of Exchanges (SAFE) for 2009.  He was also selected in the 2008 International

Who’s Who of Professionals.

Mr. Afridi is an active supporter of charitable organizations.  He has served as the

President of the Old Grammarians Society & Trust and is currently member of the

Board of Governors (and Honorary Treasurer) of The Kidney Centre.
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Muhammad Hanif Jakhura
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura is the Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and the Institute of Corporate Secretaries

of Pakistan (ICSP).

Mr. Jakhura joined CDC in 1994 and after serving as General Manager from 1994

to 2002 was elevated to the position of CEO in March 2002 and to date he is

working in the same capacity. Mr. Jakhura was also appointed as Chief Executive

Officer of National Clearing Company of Pakistan Ltd. (NCCPL) in January 2002

and served in that position as well up to September, 2005.  He is also Director,

Institute of Capital Markets.  He has also successfully completed a certification

course by Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance for Certified Director.

He has served as the Chairman of the Committee to Review Institutional Arrangement

for Financing Stock Brokers & Stock Market Investors. He has also served as the

Chairman of Asia Pacific Central Depositories Group for the year 2006-07.

Anjum Zahoor Iqbal
Director

Mr. Anjum Iqbal, CEO, Habib Metropolitan Bank is a seasoned international banker.

He has worked both in Pakistan and in a number of countries around the world.

Before joining Habib Metropolitan Bank, he has worked for Citibank in various

countries including Pakistan in the Commercial, Corporate and Investment Banking

areas. Prior to joining HMB, he was Managing Director – Commercial Banking

Group (Europe, Middle East & Africa) for Citibank.

 Mr. Iqbal has an MBA (Finance and Marketing) degree from Institute of Business

Administration (IBA), Karachi.
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Mohammed Minaz Bhuiya
Director

Mr. Minaz Bhuiya holds a Bachelors Degree in Management and Economics

from the University of Toronto (1999) and is also a CFA charter holder.

Mr. Minaz started his career at Citibank in 1999 as a Management Associate

in Finance. He then moved to the business side and set up the Trade Product

Unit. Over the last few years, he has held roles in Financial Institutions as a

relationship manager and subsequently as the Cash Management Head. Mr.

Minaz is currently Head of Global Transaction Services for Citibank Pakistan,

a position he has held since November 2008.

Ayaz Ahmed
Director

Mr. Ayaz Ahmed did his Bachelors of Science in Electrical Engineering from

the University of Strathclyde in Glasgow, UK. He is a senior member of the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland since 1984.

He started his career with Morgan Grenfell & Co, a Merchant Bank in

London. He later became the Commercial Manager for Detergents/Personal

Care product business at Unilever Pakistan Limited.

Mr. Ayaz Ahmed has also served the Hong Kong & Shanghai Banking

Corporation (HSBC) as CFO in Pakistan initially and later in Hong Kong as

Manager Finance Planning. Currently he is the Chief Financial Officer of

Habib Bank Limited as well as a Director of Habib Allied Bank plc-UK

subsidiary, NIFT – National Cheque Clearing Company and

1 Link – National Switch.
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Haji Ghani Haji Usman
Director

Haji Ghani Haji Usman possesses vast experience of business and industry spanning

over a period of 47 years. He started his professional career with Habib Bank

Limited in 1962 where he served for twenty years and gained substantial knowledge

of banking sector.

Haji Ghani is currently serving as the Chairman of BMA Capital Management

Limited and as Director on the Board of The Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee)

Limited (KSE), Al-Abbas Sugar Mills Limited, BMA Financial Services (Pvt.) Limited

and National Venture Capital Limited. Besides, he is Chairman of Al-Abbas Group

of Companies.

He was thrice selected as Vice President of KSE and also served as Director on the

Board of Central Depository Company and National Clearing Company.

Haji Ghani is also a socially active Philanthropist and member of the Management

Committee of Kharadar General Hospital, Vice President Bantwa Rahat Committee

& member Bantwa Anjuman Himaayat Islam. He was also an ex- M.C. member

of Hilal-e-Ahmer Society Sindh & Chairman of All Pakistan Memon Federation Association.

Muhammad Yasin Lakhani
Director

Mr. Muhammad Yasin Lakhani held the positions of President / Chairman of The Karachi Stock

Exchange for five times. He was also the Chairman of the Central Depository Company in the

year 1994 & 1998.

Mr. Lakhani has participated in a number of seminars/ workshops and presented papers at various

local and international institutions like ADB, Development Banker Institute, Institute of Business

Administration (IBA), Lahore Institute of Management Sciences (LUMS) and Institute of Bankers.

As President / Chairman he was responsible for introducing a number of reforms at Karachi Stock

Exchange. He was the Chairman of Advisory & Arbitration Committee, Administrative Committee,

Rule and Regulation Committee, Taxation Committee, Company Affairs Committee and Defaulters

Committee of the Exchange. He was also a member of the Committee on Code of Corporate

Governance of ICAP.

He represented Karachi Stock Exchange at the Asia-Pacific Forum on Securities Market Regulation

and Supervision organized by Asian Development Bank in Manila. He was also the member of

Pakistan delegation at Investment Conferences held in Seoul, Hong Kong, Singapore & London.

He also represented Capital Market Forum of Islamic Countries, South Asian Federation of

Exchanges (SAFE) and Federation of European & Asian Stock Exchanges (FEAS).

Mr. Muhammad Yasin Lakhani had passed B.A (Honours) & M.A in International Relations from

University of Karachi in the year 1967 and 1968 and secured first position in both.



Tariq Iqbal Khan
Director

Mr. Tariq Iqbal Khan is the Fellow Member of the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP).

He is one of the founder directors of Islamabad Stock Exchange (Guarantee)

Limited (ISE) and remained associated with ISE from 1990 to 1993 where he

handled all legal work during formation of the Exchange. He also served as

the President ISE from 1995 to 1997.

Mr. Tariq Iqbal Khan has also served as Commissioner and Acting Chairman

of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and Chairman/Managing

Director of Investment Corporation of Pakistan. He was also associated with

Central Board of Revenue as the Member Tax Policy & Co-ordination.

Currently he is serving National Investment Trust Limited (NIT) as the Chairman

and Managing Director since October 2001. He also represents NIT on 11 listed

companies besides representing the Government of Pakistan as nominee

Director in other unlisted companies.
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Mr. Omar Khalil Malik is a Director of Networth Securities Limited having

more than 10 years experience of the capital markets. He is also a Director

on Board of Directors of the Lahore Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited

(LSE). He also served on various committees including the Audit Companies

Affairs, Information Technology, Trading Affairs, Legal Affairs, Human Resource

etc for LSE.

He holds a Masters Degree in Business Administration and studied in

institutions including Cardiff Business School (University of Wales), Institute

of Management Sciences and Hailey College (Punjab University).

Omar Khalil Malik
Director
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     Rafaquat Ali Chaudhary
Director

Mr. Rafaquat Ali Chaudhary is the nominee director of Islamabad Stock Exchange.

He has been associated with the investment industry for the last 12 years and

presently heads a corporate membership at ISE under the name of M/s Elite Stock

Services. He has also been a member of the ISE Board of Directors on few

occasions. Mr. Rafaquat is a Masters degree holder from the University of Punjab,

and has attended many international seminars and conferences.

Mr. Tariq Rafi has been awarded the coveted civil award of “Sitara-e-Imtiaz”

by His Excellency the President of Pakistan in 2006 for his services to the

industry and trade. A business graduate from the University of Karachi, he also

received the Best Businessman Award for the year 1999 from the Government

of Pakistan and a Certificate from Institute of Business Administration (IBA).

Currently he is the Chief Executive of Siddiqsons Group and a Director in all

the group companies. He is also a sponsor director of MCB Bank Limited and

Muslim Commercial Financial Services (Pvt.) Limited. He is the honorary Counsel

General of Republic of Serbia for Pakistan and Chairman and CEO of

Sofitel Tower Clifton.

Tariq Rafi
Director
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Front Row :
(from left to right)

Muhammad Hanif                                     Chief Executive Officer

Aftab Ahmed Diwan                                  Chief Operating Officer

Ejaz Ali Shah                                              Head of Marketing
                                                            & Customer Support Services

Kamran Ahmed Qazi                                CFO & Company Secretary
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M. Anwar Gopalani                                       Head of Human Resources

Abdul Samad                                Head of Share Registrar Services

Farooq Hussain                                 Head of Administration

Syed Asif Shah                                Chief Information Officer

Javed Shakoor                                   Head of Product Development

Atiqur Rehman                             Head of Trustee & Custodial Services

Fazal Gaffoor                                     Chief Internal Auditor

Back Row :
(from left to right)
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COMPANY INFORMATION

CFO & Company Secretary

Kamran Ahmed Qazi

Registered Office

CDC House

99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S.,

Main Shahra-e-Faisal,

Karachi-74400

Auditors

Anjum Asim Shahid Rahman

Chartered Accountants

Bankers

Bank Alfalah Limited HSBC Bank Middle East Limited

Bank Al Habib Limited MCB Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited National Bank of Pakistan

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited

Legal Advisors

Akhund Forbes M/s. Ijaz Ahmed & Associates

Corporate and Commercial Law Firm Advocates & Legal Consultants

M/s. A.K. Brohi & Co. M/s. Mandviwalla & Zafar

Legal Consultants & Advocates Advocates

M/s. Bawaney & Partners M/s. Orr, Dignam & Co.

Advocates & Investment & Corporate Advocates
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COMPANY INFORMATION

1 Mr. Muhammad Yasin Lakhani Chairman
2 Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura Chief Executive Officer
3 Haji Ghani Haji Usman Member
4 Mr. Muhammad Minaz Bhuiya Member
5 Mr. Omar Khalil Malik Member
6 Mr. Tariq Rafi Member

Executive Committee

S# Name Designation

Audit Committee

The Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited
Lahore Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited
Citibank Overseas Investment Corporation
MCB Bank Limited
Habib Bank Limited
National Investment Trust Limited
Industrial Development Bank of Pakistan
NIB Bank Limited
Islamabad Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited
Crescent Steel and Allied Products Ltd.
Al-Zamin Leasing Corporation Limited
Shakarganj Mills Limited
IGI Insurance Limited
Innovative Investment Bank Limited
Crescent Standard Business Management (Pvt.) Ltd.
TOTAL

Shareholding

Shareholders Total No. of
Shares Held

% of
ShareholdingS#

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15

39.8
10
10
10

6.35
6.35
5.0
5.0
2.5

1.75
1.0
1.0

0.65
0.5
0.1

100%

19,904,000
5,000,000
5,000,000
5,000,000
3,173,001
3,173,000
2,500,000
2,500,000
1,250,000

875,000
500,000
500,000
324,999
250,000

50,000
50,000,000

1 Mr. Ayaz Ahmed Chairman
2 Mr. Adnan Afridi Member
3 Mr. Fazal Hussain Gaffoor Secretary
4 Mr. Rafaquat Ali Ch. Member
5 Mr. Tariq Iqbal Khan Member

S# Name Designation

Six Meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year 2008-09
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Disciplinary Panel/Tribunal
[Formed under the CDC Regulations for the purpose of conducting Disciplinary Proceedings]

1 Mr. Tariq Rafi President
2 Haji Ghani Haji Usman Deputy President
3 Mr. Adnan Afridi Member
4 Mr. Anjum Zahoor Iqbal Member
5 Mr. Ayaz Ahmed Member

S# Name Designation

1 Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan Chief Operating Officer as Chairman
2 Mr. Faisal Parekh Secretary
3 Mr. Fazal Gaffoor Chief Internal Auditor as Member
4 Mr. Kamran Ahmed Qazi CFO & Company Secretary as Member
5 Syed Asif Shah Chief Information Officer as Member

Executive Steering Committee

S# Name Designation

 1 Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura Chairman
 2 Mr. Abdul Samad Member
 3 Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan Member
 4 Mr. Atiq-ur-Rehman Member
 5 Mr. Ejaz Ali Shah Member
 6 Mr. Farooq Hussain Member
 7 Mr. Fazal Hussain Gaffoor Member
 8 Mr. Javed Shakoor Member
 9 Mr. Kamran Ahmed Qazi Member
10 Mr. M. Anwar Gopalani Member
11 Mr. Rasool Hooda Secretary
12 Mr. Saleem Haider Khan Member
13 Mr. Shariq Naseem Member
14 Syed Asif Shah Member

Management Committee

S# Name Designation

External Members
1 Mr. Kumail Dehradunwala CIO UBL
2 Mr. Salman Iqbal CEO Softech Systems (Pvt.) Ltd.
Internal Members
3 Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura Chief Executive Officer CDC
4 Mr. Fazal Hussain Gaffoor Chief Internal Auditor CDC
5 Syed Asif Shah Chief Information Officer CDC

IT Steering Committee

S# Name Designation

COMPANY INFORMATION
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CDC - Access Activations

%

91.50

4.70

2.34

1.46

Location

Karachi

Lahore

Islamabad

Hyderabad

Total

Number of Employees
Location-wise Distribution

No. of Employees

312

16

8

5

341

100

400

350

300

250

200

150

50

0

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Year-wise Employee Strength

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009Year

56 62 116 135 170 165 186 211 239 283 306 358 341Employees

No. of IAS A/c Activation
of Web

Activation
of SMS

IVR as a %
of IAS A/c

Web as a %
of IAS A/c

SMS as a %
of IAS A/c

51,984 11,717 398 15.91 22.54 0.77

Activation
of IVR

8,269 No. of
IAS A/c

Activation
of Web

Activation
of IVR

50,000

40,000

30,000

20,000

10,000

0

Six Years Financial Data

854.73

479.95

374.78

263.67

5.92

1,130.35

565.38

564.97

397.87

7.96

858.01

385.17

472.84

304.84

6.10

677.76

272.91

404.85

275.80

5.52

574.772

201.345

373.427

231.427

4.63

Jun 09 Jun 08 Jun 07 Jun 06 Jun 05 Jun 04

Revenue

Expenses

Profit before taxation

Profit after taxation

Earning per share (Rs.)

Rupees in Million

878.918

623.665

255.252

175.808

3.52

Facts & Figures for IAS Clients

As on June 30, 2009
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Summary - Trustee & Custodial Operations
As on June 30, 2009

Category Open-End Funds Closed-End Funds Voluntary Pension Scheme (VPS) Total

Income & Money Market
Conventional
Islamic
Equity
Conventional
Islamic
Balanced
Conventional
Islamic
Capital Protected
Conventional
Islamic
Fund of Funds
Conventional
Islamic
Voluntary Pension Scheme
Conventional
Islamic
Total

Total No. of Operational Funds
Sr. #

1

2

3

4

5

6

25
7

16
7

9
2

3
1

1
-

-
-

32

23

11

4

1

-

1
-

10
1

-
1

-
-

-
-

-
-

1

11

1

-

-

-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

2
3

-

-

-

-

-

5

26
7

26
8

9
3

3
1

1
-

2
3

33

34

12

4

1

5

Category Open-End Funds Closed-End Funds Voluntary Pension Scheme (VPS) Total

Income & Money Market
Conventional
Islamic
Equity
Conventional
Islamic
Balanced
Conventional
Islamic
Capital Protected
Conventional
Islamic
Fund of Funds
Conventional
Islamic
Voluntary Pension Scheme
Conventional
Islamic
Total

Net Asset Value (NAV) of Operational Funds (Rs. in Billion)
Sr. #

1

2

3

4

5

6

71.93
8.48

25.55
6.02

8.34
1.36

4.55
0.58

0.72
-

-
-

80.41

31.57

9.7

5.13

0.72

-

1.08
-

17.17
1.17

-
1.15

-
-

-
-

-
-

1.08

18.34

1.15

-

-

-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

0.22
0.44

-

-

-

-

-

0.66

73.01
8.48

42.72
7.2

8.34
2.5

4.55
0.58

0.72
-

0.22
0.44

81.49

49.91

10.85

5.13

0.72

0.66

Participants / Account Holders (excluding CFS accounts)
Eligible Pledgees
CDS Live Securities
No. of Shares in CDS (in Billion)
Market Cap. of shares in CDS (Rs. in Billion)
Units of TFCs/WAPDA Bonds/Sukuks and Open-End
Mutual Funds in CDS (in Million)
Investor Accounts (individual and corporate)
Number of Securities in IAS (in Billion)
Market Cap. of securities in IAS (Rs. in Billion)

Six Years CDS Operational Data
591
108
695

55.69
2097.72

43,985
15.411

724.433

541
102
658

46.11
2102.29

41,079
11.449

621.801

539
93

613
33.27

1115.86

41,266
8.99

386.27

461
84

573
17.68

692.26

29,155
5.46

187.28

420
74

542
11.27

447.39

13,483
3.15

143.40

69.24 52.15 65.09 11.39 9.42

Jun 09 Jun 08 Jun 07 Jun 06 Jun 05 Jun 04
611
103
722

65.089
1,148.477

51,984
20.199

469.399

62.399

71 13 5 89

127.53 20.57 0.66 148.76
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Sector wise break-up of Securities in CDS

Live vs. Declared Eligible
As on June 30, 2009

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

Sr #. Sector % Live vs.
Dec. EligibleLive Declared

Eligible
Cement

Commercial Banks

Fertilizer

Oil & Gas Exploration Companies

Oil & Gas Marketing Companies

Pharmaceutical

Power Generation & Distribution

Refinery

Technology & Communication

Closed-End Mutual Funds

Leasing Companies

Open-End Mutual Funds

Inv. Banks/Inv. Companies/Securities

Automobile Assembler

Sukuk Certificates

Sugar & Allied Industries

Term Finance Certificates

Chemical

Modarabas

Insurance

Food & Personal Care Products

Engineering

Preference Shares

Cables & Electrical Goods

Textile Spinning

Paper & Board

Glass & Ceramics

Miscellaneous

Automobile Parts & Accessories

Leather & Tanneries

Synthetic & Rayon

Transport

Textile Composite

Jute

Tobacco

Textile Weaving

Woollen

Vanaspati & Allied Industries

Total

21

28

7

4

6

8

15

4

9

23

15

14

60

11

35

33

86

22

29

34

17

12

15

9

80

7

7

30

9

4

10

4

37

3

2

9

2

1

722

21

28

7

4

6

8

15

4

9

24

16

15

65

12

39

37

100

26

36

43

22

16

20

12

109

10

10

43

13

6

15

6

58

6

4

20

5

14

904

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

95.83

93.75

93.33

92.31

91.67

89.74

89.19

86.00

84.62

80.56

79.07

77.27

75.00

75.00

75.00

73.39

70.00

70.00

69.77

69.23

66.67

66.67

66.67

63.79

50.00

50.00

45.00

40.00

7.14

79.87
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Securities Joined CDS during the year 2008-2009

Sr #.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

Aisha Steel Mills Limited

Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited

ABL Asset Management Company Limited

JDW Sugar Mills Limited - Sukuk Certificates

KASB Securities Limited

Crescent Jute Products Limited

JDW Sugar Mills Limited - TFC

Sui Southern Gas Company Limited - Sukuk Certificates

Pakistan Cash Management Fund

Trust Investment Bank Limited - TFC (04-07-08)

AMZ Asset Management Limited

First Credit & Investment Bank Limited

Pak American Fertilizers Limited - Sukuk Certificates

Magnus Investment Advisors Limited

Descon Oxychem Limited

Escorts Capital Limited

Nishat Power Limited

SME Leasing Limited - TFC

House Building Finance Corporation Limited – Sukuk Certificates

B.R.R. Guardian Modaraba - TFC

Faysal Asset Management Limited

Sitara Peroxide Limited - Sukuk Certificates

Fauji Akbar Portia Marine Terminals (Private) Limited

Al-Hamd Foods Limited

Alliance Investment Management Limited

Worldcall Telecom Limited - TFC (07-10-08)

MCB Dynamic Stock Fund

MCB Dynamic Cash Fund

Khushhali Bank Limited

Eden Housing Limited - Sukuk Certificates (2nd Issue)

Dawood Family Takaful Limited

Pakistan Mobile Communications Limited - TFC (28-10-08)

Arzoo Textile Mills Limited - Sukuk Certificates

Quetta Textile Mills Limited - Sukuk Certificates

Pak Elektron Limited - Sukuk Certificates (2nd Issue)

Sitara Energy Limited - Sukuk Certificates

Makro-Habib Pakistan Limited

Eden Builders Limited - Sukuk Certificates

Security Name Live Date

15-Jul

17-Jul

22-Jul

23-Jul

26-Jul

26-Jul

30-Jul

1-Aug

7-Aug

9-Aug

11-Aug

12-Aug

16-Aug

20-Aug

28-Aug

29-Aug

19-Sep

19-Sep

4-Oct

21-Oct

22-Oct

23-Oct

30-Oct

5-Nov

6-Nov

7-Nov

14-Nov

14-Nov

25-Nov

27-Nov

28-Nov

29-Nov

29-Nov

1-Dec

3-Dec

13-Dec

17-Dec

18-Dec
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Securities Joined CDS during the year 2008-2009 (Continued...)

Sr #.

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

Alfalah GHP Principal Protected Fund

Lahore Electric Supply Company Limited - Sukuk Certificates

Al-Zamin Leasing Modaraba - TFC

Media Times Limited

Avari Hotels Limited - TFC

Pak-American Fertilizers Limited - TFC (3rd Issue)

Faisalabad Electric Supply Company Limited - TFC

Gujranwala Electric Power Company Limited - TFC

IBL HealthCare Limited

Shakarganj Mills Limited - TFC

Three Stars Hosiery Mills (Private) Limited - Sukuk Certificates

Islamabad Electric Supply Company Limited - TFC

Bunny’s Limited - TFC

National Investment Trust Limited - TFC

HBL Asset Management Limited

MCB Asset Management Company Limited

Atlas Asset Management Limited

K.S. Sulemanji Esmailji & Sons (Private) Limited - Sukuk Certificates

AKD Investment Management Limited

UDL Modaraba Management (Private) Limited

A.R.T. Modaraba Management (Private) Limited

Sachal Satellite Communications (Private) Limited

Sachal Satellite Communications (Private) Limited - Preference Shares

BMA Asset Management Company Limited

Asian Housing Finance Limited

Alpha Beta Capital Markets (Private) Limited

KASB Modaraba Management (Private) Limited

Nishat (Chunian) Limited - 15% Cumulative Non-Voting Preference Shares

PICIC Asset Management Company Limited

Askari Investment Management Limited

Engro Foods Limited - Sukuk Certificates

Grays Leasing Limited - TFC (2nd Issue)

Pak Oman Microfinance Bank Limited

Alfalah GHP Alpha Fund

Loads Limited

Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited

Tameer Microfinance Bank Limited

Security Name Live Date

30-Dec

9-Jan

16-Jan

22-Jan

28-Jan

30-Jan

4-Feb

4-Feb

14-Feb

14-Feb

6-Mar

20-Mar

24-Mar

28-Mar

30-Mar

1-Apr

3-Apr

3-Apr

6-Apr

17-Apr

24-Apr

28-Apr

28-Apr

29-Apr

30-Apr

26-May

1-Jun

2-Jun

6-Jun

12-Jun

13-Jun

13-Jun

16-Jun

17-Jun

20-Jun

24-Jun

27-Jun
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Financial Highlights

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

FINANCIAL YEARS ENDED ON JUNE 30

RUPEES IN MILLION

1,564.205

 618.802

 559.214

 635.91

 113.223

136.498

878.918

 623.665

 255.252

 175.808

 150.00

-

85.32

5.11

 3.52

 31.28

4.66

4.30

 12.97

 0.92

 0.16

20.00%

11.83%

10.04%

70.96%

29.04%

1,408.962

 523.110

 19.292

 1,145.898

 115.586

 163.753

 1,130.358

 565.382

 564.975

 397.875

 -

 197.75

 -

 11.30

 7.96

 46.62

 7.00

 6.86

 14.14

 0.85

 0.20

35.20%

31.60%

25.94%

50.02%

49.98%

1,109.086

 467.590

 20.227

 891.693

 111.643

 158.781

 854.732

 479.954

 374.778

 263.669

60.45

 100.75

22.93

 7.50

 5.27

55.04

5.62

 5.43

 10.09

 1.19

 0.24

30.85%

26.08%

20.88%

56.15%

43.85%

912.845

 394.372

 20.526

731.569

 87.985

 145.637

 858.011

 385.170

 472.841

 304.841

 58.50

 71.50

 19.19

 9.46

 6.10

 70.22

 5.02

 4.87

 12.99

 0.92

 0.26

35.53%

39.77%

30.31%

44.89%

55.11%

620.234

 295.842

 41.721

 527.339

 77.533

 167.135

 677.763

 272.908

 404.855

 275.798

 40.00

 30.00

 14.50

 8.10

 5.52

 62.02

 3.16

 3.07

 11.44

 1.05

 0.39

40.69%

58.90%

38.47%

40.27%

59.73%

316.221

 172.317

 7.758

 388.976

 107.578

 145.251

 574.772

 201.345

 373.427

 231.427

 40.00

 -

 17.28

 7.47

 4.63

 31.62

 2.68

 2.62

 10.61

 1.13

 0.80

40.26%

104.95%

50.66%

35.03%

64.97%

BALANCE SHEET

Share Holders Equity

Fixed Assets

Other Long Term Assets

Current Assets

Long Term Liabilities

Current Liabilities

OPERATIONAL RESULTS

Total income

Total expenses

Profit before taxation

Profit after taxation

DIVIDENDS

Cash

Bonus

Payout ratio (% age of revenue after tax)

INFORMATION PER ORDINARY SHARE

Earnings (pre tax)

Earnings (after tax)

Break-up value

RATIOS

Current ratio

Quick ratio

Debtors turnover ratio (times per year)

Debtors collection period (months)

Debt equity ratio

Net profit margin

Return on Equity

Return on assets

Expense as a % age of revenue (inc. dep. & excl. tax)

Profit before tax as a % age of revenue

2009



Shareholders Equity

1,600

1,400

1,200

1,000

800

600

400

200

0

Rupees in Million

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Shareholder
Equity

1,564.205 1,408.962 1,109.086 912.845 620.234 316.221

Years ended 30 June

250

200

150

100

50

0

Liabilities Rupees in Million

Long Term Liabilities

Current Liabilities

113.223 115.586 111.643 87.985 77.533 107.578
136.498 163.653 158.781 145.637 167.135 145.251

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Years ended 30 June

12
10

8
6
4
2
-

Earning Per Share (EPS) Rupees in Million

Earnings (per tax)

Earnings (after tax)

5.11 11.30 7.50 9.46 8.10 7.47
3.52 7.96 5.27 6.10 5.52 4.63

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Years ended 30 June

Net Profit Margin
50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Net Profit Margin 20.00% 35.20% 30.85% 35.53% 40.69% 40.26%

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Years ended 30 June

80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
-

Break-up Value

Break-up Value 31.28 46.62 55.04 70.22 62.02 31.62

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Years ended 30 June

600

500

400

300

200

100

0

Profit Rupees in Million

Profit Before Taxation

Profit After Taxation

255.252 564.975 374.779 472.841 404.855 373.428
175.808 397.875 263.670 304.841 275.798 231.428

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Years ended 30 June
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Assets Rupees in Million

Fixed Assets

Other Long Term Assets

Current Assets

618.802 523.110 467.590 394.372 295.842 172.317
559.214 19.292 20.227 20.526 41.721 7.758
635.91 1,145.898 891.693 731.569 527.339 388.976

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Years ended 30 June

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1000
900
750
600
450
300
150

0

Total Income - Total Expenses Rupees in Million

Years ended 30 June

Total Income

Total Expenses

878.918 1,130.358 854.732 858.011 677.763 574.772
623.665 565.382 479.954 385.170 272.908 201.345

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
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It is my pleasure, to present before you the annual

report of your Company for the year ended June

30, 2009 and to mention briefly the highlights of

the Company’s performance for the year.

It would be true to say that the year in question has

been overshadowed by the Global Financial Crisis

which, although it had been building for a long

time, really hit the world economy in the shape of

an alarming meltdown in the financial sector around

September, 2008. While there is now reasonably

sufficient clarity as to the sources of the worldwide

financial contagion, we may still not know the extent

of the crisis in terms of its eventual scope and the

length of time before we can expect a sustainable

recovery to take hold.

As far as the Pakistan economy is concerned, it was

largely insulated from the direct effects of the

financial crunch experienced worldwide, unlike

those emerging economies which are heavily

dependent on exports to the developed world.



Having said that there is no doubt that financial crisis aggravated the effects of the crisis that Pakistan was

already in. The immediate cause for the severe macro-economic imbalance in our economy was the Balance

of Payments crisis caused by the sharp spike in the international price of crude oil together with an unprecedented

rise in commodity prices. Five years of healthy growth ended quite abruptly during the period under review.

While some much-needed relief was provided by the oil prices subsequently coming down substantially and

by the fact that commodity prices have also been trimmed down to more rational levels, the crisis in the

economy has also been prolonged due to political uncertainties and an uncertain internal security situation.

This, added to the fact that Pakistan’s economic difficulties came at a time when the entire donor community

including the United States and the Europeans were both engrossed in their own sub-prime disasters, left the

Government with no choice but to seek relief from the International Monetary Fund.

The capital markets in the country, which had been performing well until April 2008 started to come down

steeply as a result of the factors I have just mentioned and on August 27, 2008, with KSE 100 index at 9,144

points, the three stock exchanges implemented a price floor which remained in place for 111 days and was

finally lifted on December 15, 2008. Along with other consequences, this also led to Pakistan’s exit from the

MSCI emerging market index.

As you can well imagine, all this turmoil in the financial markets could not but have an adverse effect on

your Company’s performance. The budget approved for the financial year 2008-09 had to be revised downward

in October 2008 and there is a shortfall in revenue of Rs. 63 million even against the revised figure. It is a

credit to the management, however, that while the financial performance suffered a major downturn, something

made inevitable by the prevailing market conditions; the operational parameters still managed growth and

the Company was able to achieve most of the operational targets set in the budget for the year 2008-09. There

was healthy growth in almost all areas of operations. The total number of securities in CDS increased by 16

percent to 65 billion. Investor Accounts grew in number to 51,984, an increase of 18% over the previous

year.

The Company commenced operations in the Registrar/Transfer Agent service in the early part of the year.

Although facing stiff competition from the existing players in this field, we have been able to expand our

portfolio to 18 clients. Included among these are some of the prominent companies in the country, like Pakistan

International Airlines, National Bank of Pakistan, BOC Gases Pakistan and Lucky Cement. As the portfolio

of clients expands, it is planned to move the R/TA operation from CDC House to our premises in Progressive

Plaza.

Continued growth in the number of mutual funds availing services from our Company is a demonstration of

the confidence that the mutual fund industry and the investing public place on the quality of our service.

During the year, despite the difficult conditions, the number of funds under our trusteeship increased from

77 to 89. The trustee division, even with the steep decline that took place during the year in Net Asset Values

of mutual funds, contributed 23 percent of the total revenue of the Company in 2008-09 and is expected to

develop into an even larger contributor to the total figure in the future.

I would also like to mention here, with some pride, that as the leading Trusteeship Service provider, your

Company maintained a close liaison with Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and played

a major role in ensuring transparency in the redemption process, during the recent crisis faced by the mutual

fund industry.
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The Investor Account Service reached and exceeded the landmark figure of 50,000 accounts during the year

under review. The number of accounts currently stands at 51,984 holding over 20 billion securities with a

total worth of approximately Rs. 469 billion. The service is offered from Karachi, Lahore, Islamabad and

Hyderabad. For a nominal fee of Rs. 500 per annum, the investor gets the added benefit of our IVR and Web

Access services, account balances/statements and transaction order books. During the year under review, the

Company has also started providing SMS service to IAS account holders at a very low cost of Rs. 25 per month.

We have continued our constant drive to maximize security of the data entrusted to us. Our BCP system,

designed to ensure minimum disruption of services in the event of a disaster, is now fully operational and

the first full scope BCP drill during business hours was conducted on March 21, 2009. With this, CDC has

now entered the ranks of the few Pakistani institutions to have established and successfully tested a comprehensive

Business Continuity Plan. In the same vein, to make sure that there is no loss of data as a result of any kind

of mishap, we have now also started the practice of taking backups at an out of city location.

Our recent implementation of a comprehensive Information Security Management System, fully conforming

to the ISO 27001 standard will give added comfort to all those whose critical data we maintain as the only

central depository in the country and as the leading provider of trusteeship services to mutual funds. Having

implemented all the requirements of ISO 27001, the Company is now in the process of getting a full certification

to this effect.

To give added comfort to Investor Account holders and in line with our constant efforts to bring added

transparency in the functioning of the capital markets, we have now initiated a process of flagging investor

accounts which have been dormant for some time, and not allowing any transactions on such accounts until

such time as a formal request is received from the account holder. This will prevent unauthorized movements

and thus give an enhanced sense of security to users of our IAS service.

With the same objective, to ensure that investors are kept informed about movements in their accounts, a free

of cost SMS service has been implemented for sub-account holders. It is now mandatory for all CDC Participants

to offer this service to their sub-account holders. Once this service is fully implemented by participants, any

movement or pledge of securities from a sub-account will be immediately communicated to the sub-account

holder through a system-generated SMS on the mobile phone number registered in the system. This is a major

step which will provide sub-account holders much needed protection for their securities. In a relevant move

the SECP has also issued a very comprehensive version of sub account opening forms with defined set of

authorities to the participants for moving their client (sub-account holders) securities.

In order to provide more relevant information to users of our services and to the public at large, and in as

attractive and user-friendly a manner as possible, we have recently done a complete revamping of our corporate

website. Going through the newly redesigned website provides further confirmation of CDC being a customer-

driven company.

Until now, when certain securities belonging to an investor needed to be frozen for one reason or another,

eg., sponsor shares in accordance with SECP or State bank of Pakistan requirements, the investor was obliged

to open a separate account for such securities. Changes have been made recently in CDS to eliminate the

need for this as security level freezing is now available in CDS.
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Your company has always placed great emphasis on the benefits to be gained through cross-border cooperation.

To explore avenues of mutual assistance and to enhance coordination, CDC has recently signed a Memorandum

of Understanding (MOU) with the Korean Securities Depositories. The document covers cooperation in the

areas of technology, operational activities and customer care. I don’t think I need to stress this but it is worth

stating that such MOUs, a number of which have been signed with various regional depositories in the past,

contribute substantially to management’s efforts to bring CDC at par with international standards and best

practices. Valuable training opportunities are also provided to our staff by virtue of such agreements to

collaborate.

I feel I can say without fear of contradiction that, despite a glowing track record of successful operations in

the years since startup of operations, the management of your Company has never ceased in their efforts to

rise above the already established benchmarks in terms of expansion in the company’s revenue base and

enhancements in shareholders’ equity. The next year promises to be a challenging one, for the country as well

as for CDC. To further increase prospects of revenue generation, CDC has successfully developed the systems

and procedures for managing the process of issuance and settlement of unpaid Letters of Rights (LoR). Through

these procedures, we will be able to manage end-to-end the entire process including issuance, settlement and

conversion of rights into shares and credit to respective CDS accounts. Development work on the new module

is complete and investors will be offered the service in the very near future, as soon as the necessary regulatory

approvals have been received.

Depending on the situation prevailing in the market, we plan to take steps towards listing the shares of CDC

on the three stock exchanges of the country. To this end, a mandate has been awarded to a financial advisory

firm to act as the lead manager for the listing and subsequent IPO of CDC shares. It is expected that the listing

and IPO will take place in the next year.

The successful implementation of a Document Management System (DMS) in Investor Account Services

department served to bring home with increased force the advantages of such a system. As a consequence,

management has decided to extend the implementation of DMS to the Operations and Trustee departments

as well, in view of the critical nature of the documents which they need to retain.

It is my pleasure in informing you that your Company apart from meeting its core values of reliability, integrity,

transparency and efficiency is fully aware of its responsibilities towards the deserving social sectors. In this

respect the Company has made donations amounting to Rs. 7.75 million to selected reputable institutions

involved in serving the needs of deserving people in the areas of health and education.

In the current scenario, participants are obliged to move securities to and from clients’ sub-accounts (or their

own House accounts in the case of proprietary trades) to their Main Accounts, for settlement purposes. This

involves a substantial amount of manual processing and, consequently, carries greater risk of error. The effort

and time involved in this manual processing and the attendant risk of error has been exercising the minds of

relevant people for quite some time. A proposed mechanism has now been developed which eliminates the

use of the Main Account from the settlement process. Under this mechanism, securities will move directly

from the seller’s sub-account to the buyer’s sub-account.

CDC management took the lead role in this matter, under advice from the Board of Directors, and a concept

paper was prepared in collaboration with KSE and NCCPL. It is anticipated that development work on this
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are

pleased to present the 17th Annual Report of the

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

along with the audited financial statements and

the Auditor's Report thereon for the year ended

June 30, 2009.

This report contains all material information

required to be disclosed under the Code of

Corporate Governance as voluntarily adopted by

the Company.
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Economic Performance

After the healthy growth of over 6 percent per annum for the last five years starting from the year 2004, the

economy went through a steep downturn during the period under review. Several factors have contributed

to the state of the economy we are in. These include fast depleting foreign currency reserves on account of

high oil prices, decline in availability of external resources needed to finance twin deficits and adverse effect

on demand for our export due to the global financial crisis. To control the staggering inflation the State Bank

of Pakistan (SBP) had to toughen its stance on the monetary policy resulting in slow down of economic

activities. While some breathing space was provided as a result of a decrease in global oil prices, the economic

crisis was prolonged due to political uncertainties combined with a difficult internal security situation which

finally forced the Government to take the shelter of an International Monetary Fund (IMF) package, in order

to avert a bigger crisis.

While the IMF package of US $ 7.6 billion has helped the government to stabilize the external account with

foreign currency reserve showing a significant improvement by crossing the US $ 12 billion mark, the

continuation of an unstable internal security situation has taken its own toll on the economic scenario resulting

in an outflow of portfolio investment and sharp decline in foreign direct investment. The GDP growth which

was recorded at 4.1 percent during the year 2007-08 has declined by more than fifty percent to 2.0 percent

for the year 2008-09. This was mainly attributable to the negative contribution made by the manufacturing

sector which was hard hit by the deteriorating law and order situation, acute power shortage, and increase

in cost of doing business on account of higher interest rate. Agriculture sector also recorded a very marginal

growth whereas services made the major contribution in GDP like in other developing countries.

The present Government is facing unprecedented challenges on numerous open fronts which it is faced with.

 There is a pressing need to develop economic policies which will help to achieve sustained economic growth

and to overcome issues like high inflation and interest rate. Another important area which needs urgent

correction is the need for developing an energy strategy, which ensures utilization of our domestic resources

and alleviates the current acute shortage of power. Good governance and successful handling of internal

insurgency coupled with international financial support could help us achieve the dividends from the long

struggle the country has been through.

Capital Market Performance

The Pakistani capital market was performing well until April 2008. However, the overall economic and security

conditions started to impact its performance from May 2008. The index (KSE 100) which had peaked at 15,676

points on April 18, 2008 started to come down steeply and on August 27, 2008 it stood at 9,144 points when

a price floor was implemented by the three stock exchanges which eventually led to Pakistan’s exit from MSCI

emerging market index. The price floor remained for 111 days and finally lifted on December 15, 2008.
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Subsequent to the removal of the price floor, the stock market witnessed an outflow of foreign portfolio

investment and this, coupled with a planned phase out of the CFS market, as approved by SECP, along with

other factors as mentioned above resulted in a sharp decline in stock markets and the KSE-100 Index went

down as low as 4,800 points. Since then, the improvement in some key economic indicator such as twin

deficit, declining inflation trend, relaxation of monetary policy, improvement of foreign currency reserves

along with strong fundamental base of companies has helped the recovery of stock markets.The KSE-100

Index has increased by 12 percent since March 2009. Nonetheless, the future direction of the stock market

will depend largely on the stance of SBP regarding the monetary policy and on other key targets set by the

government in the budget for the fiscal year 2009-10.

Company Performance

As a result of the factors mentioned above the Company’s financial performance was also affected however

we take pleasure in reporting to the shareholders that your Company continued its operational growth which

is a strong indicator that as and when the current economic conditions are improved the overall performance

of the Company will be on a fast track of recovery due to its continued growth even in times of crisis.

The table given below reflects the operational performance of the Company during the year as compared to

last year:

Increase in the number of shares and investor accounts reflects the confidence of investors in the Company’s

operations and is a testimony to it’s mission to provide secured and dependable services to the capital and

financial markets in an efficient and cost effective manner.

Revenues for the FY 2008-09 amounted to Rs. 879 million as compared to an amount of Rs. 1,130 million

last year showing a decline of Rs. 251 million. This was mainly on account of reduction in CDS related

revenue which decreased by Rs. 221 million on account of low transaction volume and a steep decline in

market capitalization of securities listed on the stock exchanges. Revenue from non CDS related sources such

as trustee business was also less than last year by Rs. 30 million as net asset values of mutual funds decreased

significantly. As the operational activities of the Company maintained their upward momentum the expenses

were incurred as budgeted to support the same and provide the customers the desired level of efficient and

secured services.
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CDS live securities

Participants and Account Holders

Eligible Pledgees

Number of shares available in CDS (in billion)

Number of IAS accounts

Number of securities in IAS accounts (in billion)

Number of Share Registrar Customers

722

611

103

65

51,984

20

18

695

591

108

56

43,985

15

1
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Summarized financial results of the Company for the last three years are as follows:

Major Achievements - 2008-09

The Company is always striving to achieve new heights and raise the bar of its service level by employing

state-of-art technological solutions and through business diversification. Search for new business avenues has

remained a consistent business strategy, paving the way for additional revenue sources enabling the Company

to provide efficient yet cost-effective services through innovative technological enhancements. A detailed

overview of Company’s operational achievements including projects under implementation is summarized

as under:

Commencement of Registrar Services

In order to facilitate the shareholders and step up the service level of registrars, the Company commenced

Registrar & Transfer Agent Services (“RTA Services”). For this purpose the Company has developed comprehensive

software (“R/TA System”). Since the commencement of R/TA Services in the early part of FY 2008-09, the

Company has now a clientele of 18 clients including Pakistan International Airlines, National Bank of Pakistan,

Lucky Cement and BOC Pakistan.

During the year, the Company also indigenously developed the balloting module of RTA System. This

enhancement of the RTA System is in line with business requirements of Issuers and will pave the way to

providing more value-added facilities and services to the customers.

The RTA Services is currently being offered from CDC House - the Head Office. However, in view of potential

growth in this area, the services will be shifted to our Progressive Plaza office so as to give us enhanced

capability to efficiently cater to additional clients and an increased workload.

Trustee and Custodial Services

The Unprecedented growth seen in the Trustee and Custodial Services (Trustee Services) over the past many

years has made this service a star performer for the Company. With the estimated revenue contribution of 23

percent during the period under review and budgeted revenue of Rs. 237 million for the FY 2009-10 Trustee

Services is expected in the future to become the largest source of revenue for the Company.

Confidence of mutual fund industry in the services of the Company can be judged from the fact that despite

competition the number of mutual funds availing services from the Company have increased to 89 as at June

30, 2009 as compared to 77 at the beginning of the FY 2008-09.
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Revenue

Expenses

Profit before tax

Profit after tax

Earnings per share

1,130

565

565

398

7.96

855

480

375

264

5.28

200720082009

879

624

255

176

3.52

Rupees in Million
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Growth in the total number of mutual funds being provided trustee and custodial services by the Company

over the past five years have been depicted below:

It is worth mentioning here that in view of recent crises faced by the mutual fund industry, the Company as

a leading Trusteeship Service provider and being cognizant of its responsibilities kept close liaison with SECP

during this period and ensured a transparent redemption process. With the grace of Almighty Allah except

for a couple of small-sized funds all other funds managed to continue their normal course of business

operations.

Investor Account Services

This year the Company achieved yet another landmark of reaching 50,000 IAS accounts with over 19 billion

securities with market value of Rs. 415 billion which is evidence of the confidence reposed by investors in

the Company as an Ultimate Custodian of Securities serving at the forefront of the capital market development.

Currently the number of investor accounts maintained by the Company is 51,984 with the service being

offered from five locations at four major cities namely; Karachi, Lahore, Islamabad and Hyderabad. Against

a nominal fee of Rs. 500 per annum for individuals, the Company provides free of cost IVR and Web-based

services, account balances/statements and transaction order books. The Company also provides Short Messaging

Service at a nominal cost of Rs. 25 per month.

Letter of Rights

The process of issuance and settlement of unpaid Letter of Rights (LoR) in physical form has always been an

area of appeal for CDC, primarily for providing a workable solution to addressing the issue of manual handling

of LoR and expediting the whole issuance process and at the same time to generate additional revenues for

the Company. In order to capture this opportunity, CDC has successfully developed the system procedures

and regulations to manage the transactions end-to-end, including issuance, settlement and conversion of

rights into certificates and credit to respective accounts in CDS.As a result, handling of LoR will become

virtually paperless, thereby increasing efficiency and reliability and effecting substantial cost savings to the

Issuers and investors alike. Tariff for the services has been so devised as to ensure that investors subscribing

for large quantities get the benefit of early receipt of shares without paying much cost.
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Information Security

After the successful implementation of ISO 27001 Standards, the Company is moving forward and intends

to obtain a formal certification, which would be a testament of implementing a live Information Security

Management System (ISMS) at the organization level. The process of preparing an organization and obtaining

the certification ensures that the organization improves the security of its information assets in all departments

of the organization, as per the requirements of the said international standards. Being the central depository

of Pakistan and providing trustee services to the majority of mutual funds, this certification will provide

comfort to our customers with regards to the security of their information and transactions.

Business Continuity

Being an infrastructure project serving the capital and financial markets of Pakistan the Company realizes the

importance of a system which is resilient against potential local disruptions.

During the year the Company conducted its first full scope BCP drill which was declared during the business

hours. The Company has become one of the first few Pakistani institutions to establish and tested a comprehensive

Business Continuity Plan. The BCP drill was also observed by an IBM Consultant who expressed satisfaction

over the conduct of the whole process. This development will ensure minimum disruption of services in the

event of a disaster severally or partially affecting business operations.

In addition to this the Company has also started the process of taking back-ups of data at an out of city location

to ensure prevention of loss of data. It is planned to move one of the high end storages available with the

Company to an off-city location which will ensure data back-up on a real-time basis. This will be in addition

to the current practice of real-time data back-up process within the city.

Following are some of the other achievements of the Company during the FY 2008-09:

•   During the year the Company activated Short Messaging Services (SMS) to sub account holders. Participants

are now required to mandatorily offer SMS to their sub account holders. As a result any movement/ pledge

of securities from sub accounts will be immediately communicated to the concerned sub account holders

through a system generated SMS on the mobile phone number registered on the SMS module.

•   The number of shares inducted into CDS during the year amounted 9 billion as a result of which total

number of shares increased from 56 billion in June 2008 to 65 billion shares at the end of June 2009.  Going

forward we expect further growth in the number of shares, reflecting confidence of investors in the system

and the services offered by the Company.

Growth in number of shares over the past five years has been graphically represented below:
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•  In line with its emphasis on customer centric efforts, CDC has recently launched its revamped corporate

website. The website has been redesigned to facilitate CDC customers as well as potential investors through

an interactive and user-friendly interface, highly functional structure and attractive layout.

•  Continuing the focus on educating the market participants about Capital Market mechanisms in relation

to CDC, the Company held its fifth Element Training Program (ETP) in Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad. The

program was aimed at educating the CDS Elements about their role and responsibilities with respect to working

of the CDS. Such training helps CDS Elements to better understand features and benefits of the system besides

updating them on new developments and system modifications.

•  To enhance compliance related function the Company introduced a detailed “Know your Customer”

procedures at Investor Account Services, where identity of prospective investor account holders is verified

through online access to the NADRA database. This process, although has increased the overall account

maintenance cost, is an effective tool to prevent opening of IAS accounts through fake CNICs.

•  CDS is an element driven system where sub-accounts are opened by CDS Participants. The Participants,

before opening a sub-account, are required to obtain necessary information to be entered into the CDS.

As part of compliance monitoring, CDC reviews sub-account opening details from time to time with a view

to ensure the accuracy and completeness of information. In this regard, Procedures for opening and maintenance

of sub accounts in the CDS have been modified during the year to facilitate the Participants in correcting

discrepancies in account opening details. Further, the system has also been up dated in order to cater to the

additional field introduced in the CDS through implementation of a new Sub Account Opening Form introduced

by SECP.

•  Since inception, CDC has constantly endeavoured to protect the investors’ interest. Recently a process has

been introduced for marking an investor account as inactive / dormant where there is no activity for a given

period of time. This measure will help in protecting the securities of a client during his long absence by

disallowing unauthorized movement hence protecting his interest as well as that of his legal heirs.

•  CDC signed Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with the Korean Securities Depositories, facilitating

cooperation in the areas of technology, operational activities and customer care. The signing of this MoU is

a step towards improving efficiency and shows CDC’s commitment to continuously streamline its processes

and technological base, and at the same time to bring it at par with international standards and best practices

for the benefit of all stakeholders. These MoUs’ also provide our staff with training opportunities which will

help them in making more positive contribution towards improvement of our service standards.
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Projects under Implementation
•   Company has received approval from the SECP to undertake Back Office Accounting Function (BOAF) for

mutual funds through a subsidiary company. Based on discussion held with market leaders in this sector and

considering that the mutual fund industry is still in the recovery phase from the recently faced financial crisis

further activity in this area has been deferred for the time being.

•   As per the current system the settlement of securities takes place at the Clearing Member (CM) level, and

CDS Participants are required to move the book-entry securities to or from House Accounts in case of

proprietary trades or the Sub-Accounts belonging to their clients by using the Main Account as a transiting

account. A substantial amount of manual processing is required in the current process where the CM first

needs to park the book-entry securities in his Main Account and then move them, by way of intra-account

transfers to the sub-accounts of individual clients or to his House Account in case of a proprietary trade; or

by another inter-account transfer to the client’s IAS account with CDC.

The current manual process also carries the risk of errors in the selection of the account or the securities, for

settlement purposes. To address this issue, an idea was conceived which eliminates the use of the Main

Account for settlement of securities transactions. Under the proposed mechanism, book-entry securities will

be moved directly from the seller’s sub account to the buyer’s sub account. The Company has developed a

concept paper on this proposal, in consultation with The Karachi Stock Exchange and National Clearing

Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL). Development work is subject to consent of Board of Directors of

Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock Exchanges on the proposed business process and approval by the SECP

on the same.

Board of Directors

The requirement of Code of Corporate Governance is truly reflected in the composition of the Board of

Directors of the Company which has representation of all the stakeholders of the Company, established as

an infrastructure project of the capital market. All the Directors of the Company fully meet the eligibility

criteria laid down under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the Code of Corporate Governance.

As per the Fit & Proper criterion approved by the Board, a director is appointed on satisfactorily meeting the

following criteria:

a. Integrity, Honesty and Reputation

b. Experience, Qualification and Management Acumen

c. Solvency and Financial Integrity

d. Availability & Accessibility

Presently, the Board comprises of Twelve Directors. A parts from the Chief Executive Officer, there are eleven

non-executive Directors including a nominee director of SECP. The tenure of office of director is three years

upon expiry of which elections are held to appoint a new Board.

Nominee Directors of respective institutions holding shares in the Company have no direct interest in the

Company’s business. The Board of Directors is actively involved during the year in performing its duties as

specified under the Code of Corporate Governance.
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Mr. M. Bashir Janmohammed
Mr. Adnan Afridi
Mr. Shahzad Chamdia
Mr. Muhammad Sohail Dayala
Mr. Arif Usmani
Mian Shakeel Aslam
Mr. Tariq Rafi
Mr. Ayaz Ahmed
Mr. Tariq Iqbal Khan
Mr. Rafaquat Ali Ch.
Mr. Muhammad Yasin Lakhani
Haji Ghani Haji Usman
Mr. Omar Khalil Malik
Mr. Anjum Zahoor Iqbal
Mr. Mohammad Minaz Bhuiya
Mr. Salman Riaz
Mr. M. Bashir Janmohammed
Mr. Adnan Afridi
Mr. Shehzad Chamdia
Mr. Muhammad Sohail Dayala
Mr. Gul A. Dhami
Mr. Tariq Rafi
Mr. Ayaz Ahmed
Mr. Tariq Iqbal Khan
Mr. Ahsan M. Saleem

December 23, 2008
December 23, 2008
December 23, 2008
December 23, 2008
December 23, 2008
December 23, 2008
December 23, 2008
December 23, 2008
December 23, 2008
December 23, 2008

January 21, 2009
January 21, 2009
March 20, 2009

April 09, 2009
May 11, 2009

September 02, 2008
December 23, 2005
November 16, 2007

February 13, 2007
February 04, 2008
February 04, 2008

December 23, 2005
December 23, 2005

March 05, 2008
December 23, 2005

-
-

January 21, 2009
January 21, 2009

May 11, 2009
March 20, 2009

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

December 22, 2008
December 22, 2008
December 22, 2008
December 22, 2008
December 22, 2008
December 22, 2008
December 22, 2008
December 22, 2008
December 22, 2008
December 22, 2008

Director Date of Appointment Date of Retirement/
Resignation

Following Directors were appointed or resigned during the year 2008-09:

During the year ended June 30, 2009, nine (09) Board meetings were held and Directors’ attendance
at these meetings was as follows:

* Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend some of the meetings.

Total No. of
meetings attended *Name of Director

No. of meetings held
in tenure of the director

during the year

Mr. M. Bashir Janmohammed
Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura
Mr. Shehzad Chamdia
Mr. Ayaz Ahmed
Mr. Ahsan M. Saleem
Mr. Tariq Rafi
Mr. Muhammad Sohail Dayala
Mr. Gul A. Dhami
Mr. Adnan Afridi
Mr. Tariq Iqbal Khan
Mr. Rafaquat Ali Ch.
Mr. Arif Usmani
Mian Shakeel Aslam
Mr. Mohammad Yasin Lakhani
Haji Ghani Haji Usman
Mr. Anjum Zahoor Iqbal
Mr. Omar Khalil Malik
Mr. Mohammad Minaz Bhuiya

9
9
5
9
4
9
5
4
9
9
5
4
3
4
4
2
2
1

9
9
4
7
4
3
4
1
7
5
4
0
2
4
3
1
2
0



Statement on Corporate, Risk Management & Cultural Regime

Corporate Citizenship: CDC, being the only depository company operating in Pakistan and regarded as a

national institution, is fully aware of its responsibility as a responsible corporate citizen and has taken steps

and measures in maintaining such stature to the benefit of all stakeholders by promoting diversity amongst

its workforce, constantly seeking to provide its employees an environment of professional and personal growth,

encouraging internship programs where students are given the opportunity to learn and grow their skills,

conducting road shows at different cities aimed at educating and creating awareness amongst the general

investors on the regulatory regime in place and functional aspects vis-à-vis working of the capital market and

role of CDC and services offered in facilitating transactions through book-entry system.

Risk Management:  CDC employs various levels of security mechanism to protect its information assets

and technology infrastructure from potential risks and hazards. In addition, a fully functional disaster recovery

backup centre is in place supported by a comprehensive disaster recovery plan incorporating wide range of

measures to effectively and efficiently deal with various disaster scenarios. CDC has also obtained risk

insurance policy covering computer crimes and employee infidelity from reputed insurance companies.

Environment & Safety Measures:  CDC is steadfast in its endeavors to maintain a healthy and secure

working environment around its business locations with a view to better fulfilling its social and civic

responsibilities. All business locations at CDC are ‘no smoking zones’ to ensure pollution-free atmosphere.

In addition, we lay great emphasis on growing plantation in and around our offices to keep the environment

fresh and healthy, thus creating a feeling of welcome.

Similarly, adequate safety measures such as fire alarm systems and wide emergency exits are in place to

effectively handle any untoward situation and to protect our workforce and valuable clients from physical

hazards.

Social Responsibilities:   Work life quality is defined as a balance between employees work demand and

outsider interest. An organization can only achieve long run success and fame in society if it executes its

duties and conduct its operations as Corporate Social Citizen.  Recognizing its social responsibility, CDC

offers competitive internship programs in every department to prepare human capital of the country for future

growth of Pakistan’s economy and for success in their careers. CDC also believes that training is a part and

parcel of social responsibilities that is why CDC arranges training and seminars for their employees to enable

them to compete within the corporate world.

In addition to the above, CDC has also made contributions to charity by making donations to social and

welfare organizations making efforts for the well-being of less privileged people.
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Statement on Ethics & Business Principles

At CDC, the most valuable asset is “trusting relationship”. Our image and reputation is built on the personal

integrity of the Company’s personnel and our commitments to our defined principals of: honesty in communicating

within the Company, with CDS Elements or with third parties, while at the same time protecting the Company’s

confidential information and trade secrets; excellence in our services, by striving to provide high-quality

product and services with backup support to our customers; responsibility for our words and actions; compassion

in our relationship with our employees and the communities affected by our business; fairness to our fellow

employees, shareholders, CDS Elements through adherence to all applicable laws, regulations and policies,

and a high standard of behavior and respect their opinion and value their feedback.

Corporate & Financial Reporting Framework

The corporate law and relevant rules spell out the overall functions and responsibilities of the Board of

Directors of the Company. The Board is fully aware of its corporate responsibilities as included in the Code

of Corporate Governance, prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and is pleased

to certify that:

• The financial statements presented by the management of the Company give a fair account of the

state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

• Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained as required under the Companies

Ordinance, 1984.

• Accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements

and changes wherever made have been disclosed and accounting estimates are based on reasonable

and prudent judgment.

• The system of internal control, which is in place, is sound in design and has been effectively

implemented and monitored.

• International Financial Reporting Standards as applicable in Pakistan have been followed in preparation

of financial statements and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed.

• There is no doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

• There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance.

• The Pattern of Shareholding is given on page 92.

• The key operating and financial data of the past six years are given on page 35 & 39.

• Note 3.3 of Financial Statements on staff retirement benefits provide the information on the value

of gratuity fund and were recorded as liability.



Cash Dividend

Considering the available cash flows and strong equity base achieved over the years, your Directors have

recommended cash dividend of Rs. 3 per share of Rs. 10 each i.e. 30% for the consideration of the Shareholders

out of distributable profit of the Company.

Contribution to the Exchequer

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 the Company paid Rs. 88.39 million to the Government as direct tax.

Auditors

The present auditors M/s. Anjum Asim Shahid Rahman, Chartered Accountants have retired, and being eligible,

have offered themselves for re-appointment. The Audit Committee of the Board has recommended

re-appointment of M/s. Anjum Asim Shahid Rahman, Chartered Accountants as statutory auditors of the

Company for the year ending June 30, 2010 for the approval of the members.

The external auditors have been given satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review Program of the

ICAP. They have confirmed that their firm is in compliance with clause xxvii of the Code as promulgated by

the SECP and International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on Code of Ethics as adopted by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

The external auditors have not been appointed to provide other service, which may impair their independence

and they have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this respect.

Future Outlook

The year under review witnessed many upheavals including placement of floor on securities prices on the

stock market and an uncertain security situation leaving a big impact on the performance of the corporate

sector including as that of the Company.  However, lately the stock exchanges removed the floor thereby

reviving normal business activity. Further, peace in war-torn areas resulting in return of IDPs and Pakistan’s

re-entry into MSCI indices (Frontier Markets), introduction of deliverable futures and improved liquidity are

some of the positive signs which would help stock market to recover from its current position thus resulting

in a positive impact on Company’s revenue.

With these developments, the future outlook of the Company looks good with better revenues and enlarged

business operations.
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Notice of 17th Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 17th Annual General Meeting of the Central Depository Company of

Pakistan Limited will be held on Monday, August 31, 2009 at 4 p.m. at its registered office situated at CDC

House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, SMCHS, Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400 to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1 To confirm minutes of Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on December 18, 2008.

2 To receive and approve the Annual Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30, 

2009, together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ reports thereon and Statement of Compliance with

the Code of Corporate Governance.

3 To consider and declare cash dividend of Rs. 3 per share of Rs. 10 each i.e. 30% to the shareholders

as recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2009.

4 To appoint Auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2010 and fix their remuneration.

By order of the Board

Sd/-

Kamran Ahmed Qazi

CFO & Company Secretary 

Karachi, Dated: Monday, August 10, 2009

Notes:

1 A Corporation or any other company registered under the Ordinance or under any other repealed 

Companies Act, where such Corporation or such other Company, is a member of the Company may,

by resolution of its directors, authorise any of its officials or any other person to act as its representative

at the above general meeting of the Company, and the person so authorised shall be entitled to 

exercise the same powers on behalf of such Corporation or such other Company if he was an individual

shareholder of the Company.
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2 The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of his 

Attorney duly authorised in writing or if such appointer is a corporation under its common seal or 

the hand of its Attorney.

3 The instrument appointing a proxy and the Power-of-Attorney or other authority (if any), under which

it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that power or authority, shall be deposited at the Registered

Office of the Company not less than forty eight hours before the time of above general meeting of 

the Company.

Book Closure:

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed on Monday, August 24, 2009 Transfer received

in order at the Registered Office of the Company located at CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S., Main

Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400 before the said date shall be treated in time, subject to Article 26 of Company’s

Articles of Association, for any corporate entitlements approved by the members.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH BEST PRACTICES OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance as contained in the Listing
Regulation No. 37 of the Karachi Stock Exchange, (Chapter XIII) of the Listing Regulations of the Lahore Stock
Exchange and Section 36 (Chapter XI) of the Listing Regulations of the Islamabad Stock Exchange for the purpose
of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a listed company is managed in compliance with
the best practices of Corporate Governance. Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (“the Company”),
although not being a listed company, has voluntarily adopted the best practices of Corporate Governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code in the following manner:

1. The Company encourages representation of non-executive directors on its Board of Directors.
At present the Board comprises of ten (10) elected independent Non-Executive Directors representing
respective institutional shareholders, a nominee director of Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan as per Articles of Association and Chief Executive Officer by virtue of position as per statute.

2. The Directors have voluntarily confirmed that none of them is serving as director in more than ten 
listed companies except one Director who has been provided relaxation with respect to number of
directorships by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

3. All the Directors of the Company are registered taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment
of any loan to a banking company, a Development Financial Institution or a Non-Banking Financial
Institution.

4. Casual vacancies occurred in the Board during the year were filled up by the directors in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association.

5. The Company has adopted a "Statement of Ethics and Business Practices" which has been signed by
all the Directors, managerial and secretarial staff of the Company.

6. The Board has developed a vision and a mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they
were approved or amended has been maintained.

7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and the Board has taken decisions on material
transactions, including appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions 
of employment of the Chief Executive Officer.

8. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and the Board met at least once in 
every quarter. Written notices of the Board meetings, along with agenda and working papers, were 
circulated at least seven days before the meetings. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately
recorded and circulated.

9. The Directors have been provided with copies of the Company's Memorandum and Articles of 
Association and the Code of Corporate Governance and they are well conversant with their duties 
and responsibilities. The Company is committed to arrange orientation course for its Directors to 
apprise them of their duties and responsibilities in future.
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10. The terms of appointment including remuneration of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company 
Secretary and Chief Internal Auditor were approved by the Board.

11. The Directors' Report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the 
Code and fully describes significant matters required to be disclosed.

12. The CEO and CFO duly endorsed the financial statements of the Company before approval by the 
Board.

13. The Directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company.

14. The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code.

15. The Board has formed Board Audit Committee (“BAC”). It comprises of four members, of whom all
are independent Non-Executive Directors including the Chairman of the BAC.

16. The meetings of the BAC were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and annual
financial results of the Company and as required by the Code. The terms of reference of the BAC 
have been formed and advised to the BAC for compliance.

17. The Company has an effective internal audit function.

18. The Statutory Auditor of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, that
they or any partner of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company
and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants
(“IFAC”) guidelines on Code of Ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

19. The Statutory Auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide 
other services except in accordance with the Listing Regulations of the Stock Exchanges and the 
auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

20. We confirm that all material principles contained in the Code have been complied with.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Karachi: Dated: August 6, 2009

Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Sd/- Sd/-
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We have reviewed the Statement of Compliance (the Statement) with the best practices contained in the Code

of Corporate Governance (the Code) prepared by the Board of Directors of Central Depository Company of

Pakistan Limited (the Company) to comply with the Listing Regulation No. 37 (Chapter XI) of the Karachi

Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited which has been voluntari ly adopted by the Company.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is that of the Board of Directors

of the Company. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively

verified, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the

provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance and report if it does not. A review is limited primarily to

inquiries of the Company personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply

with the code.

As part of our audit of financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting

and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We have

not carried out any special review of the internal control system to enable us to express an opinion as to

whether the Board's statement on internal control covers all controls and the effectiveness of such internal

controls.

Based on our review nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that the Statement of

Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the best

practices contained in the Code of Corporate Governance as adopted by the Company for the year ended

June 30, 2009.

      Sd/-

Karachi                                              Anjum Asim Shahid Rahman
                                                                                                 Chartered Accountants

Shahzada Saleem Chughtai

Date: 6 August, 2009

REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH BEST PRACTICES OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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We have audited the annexed balance sheet of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (the company)

as at June 30, 2009 and the related profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of changes

in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have

obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary

for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the company’s management to establish and maintain a system of internal control,

and prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and

the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said

statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the

accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall

presentation of the above statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion

and, after due verification, we report that:

(a) in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the company as required by the Companies

Ordinance, 1984;

(b) in our opinion:

(i) the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn 

up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of 

account and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied;

(ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the company’s business; and

(iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in

accordance with the objects of the company;

(c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

balance sheet, profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together

with the notes forming part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan,

and, give the information required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and

respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at June 30, 2009 and of the

profit, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

(d) in our opinion no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of

1980).
          Sd/-

        Karachi                                              Anjum Asim Shahid Rahman
                                                                                                 Chartered Accountants

Shahzada Saleem Chughtai

        Date: 6 August, 2009

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBER
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Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2009

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

2009 (Rupees)Note 2008 (Rupees)

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Long term deposits
Deferred taxation
         Total Non-Current Liabilities
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Short term deposits
Unearned  fee
Current maturity of liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Taxation-net
         Total Current Liabilities
         Total Liabilities
CONTINGENCY & COMMITMENTS
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible

Long term investments
Long term loans
Long term deposits and prepayments

         Total Non-Current Assets
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Prepayments
Markup accrued
Other receivables
Short term investments
Tax refundable
Cash and bank balances
         Total Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

Authorised capital
75,000,000 (2008: 75,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
50,000,000 (2008: 30,225,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
fully paid in cash

Reserve fund
Surplus on revaluation of available for sale securities
Unappropriated profit

The annexed notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chairman Chief Executive Officer

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

         Total Share Holders Equity
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

750,000,000 750,000,000

500,000,000 302,250,0004

100,000,000
    -

964,205,336
1,564,205,336

100,000,000
20,564,769

986,146,877
1,408,961,646

5
6
7

8
9

10
5

11

12.1
12.2

13
14
15

16
17

18
19
20
21

 -
 90,723,000
 22,500,000

 113,223,000

 109,789,996
 685,361

 18,549,350
7,473,434

 -
 136,498,141
 249,721,141

1,813,926,477

508,288,090
 110,513,750
 618,801,840
539,474,250
 11,955,251

 7,784,211
 559,213,712

1,178,015,552

59,450,236
 5,334,157

 32,465,777
 167,199

 1,738,055
 518,023,948

 9,154,435
 9,577,118

 635,910,925
 1,813,926,477

7,473,434
 86,062,500
 22,050,000

 115,585,934

134,593,101
 792,553

 19,684,774
8,432,234

 250,000
 163,752,662
279,338,596

 1,688,300,242

 434,935,344
 88,174,427

 523,109,771
 500,000

 11,683,787
 7,108,460

 19,292,247
 542,402,018

75,250,338
 4,921,729

 17,417,464
 179,887
 728,831

 1,030,461,410
 -

 16,938,565
 1,145,898,224
 1,688,300,242

Sd/- Sd/-
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Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 30 June 2009

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

2009 (Rupees)Note 2008 (Rupees)

The annexed notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Operating income

Operating and administrative expenses

Operating profit

Other income

Financial charges

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Earnings per share-basic & diluted

730,068,278

(622,027,562)

 108,040,716

 148,849,465

(1,637,751)

255,252,430

(79,443,971)

175,808,459

3.52

22

23

24

25

26

27

1,008,155,748

(561,173,815)

 446,981,933

 122,201,847

 (4,208,403)

 564,975,377

(167,100,000)

397,875,377

7.96

Sd/- Sd/-
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Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2009

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

2009 (Rupees)Note 2008 (Rupees)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax

Adjustments for items not involving movement of funds
Depreciation / Amortization
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Fixed assets written off
Charge for retirement benefit plans
Gain on sale of marketable securities
Return on bank deposits
Financial charges

Operating profit before working capital changes

(Increase) / Decrease in current assets
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Prepayments
Other receivables

Increase / (Decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Short term deposits
Unearned fees

Cash generated from operations
Contribution paid to retirement benefit plans
Long term deposits and prepayments
Markup received
Income tax paid

Net cash flow from operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure incurred
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Investments - net
Long term loans

Net cash from (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lease rentals paid
Dividend paid
Net cash (used in) financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
Cash and cash equivalents at the end

The annexed notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chairman Chief Executive Officer

12.1 &12.2
24

29.2
24

25

29.2

28

255,252,430

 131,865,645
 (2,875,972)

 473,135
 21,488,613

 (45,135,973)
 (8,647,478)

 1,494,357
 98,662,327

 353,914,757

15,800,102
 (412,428)

 (15,048,313)
 (1,009,224)

 (669,863)

 (23,429,913)
 (107,192)

 (1,135,424)
 (24,672,529)
328,572,366

 (22,861,805)
 3,984,749
 8,660,166

 (88,398,406)
 229,957,069

 (230,124,949)
 4,970,072

 414,772,474
 (271,464)

 189,346,133

 (9,926,591)
 -

 (9,926,591)
 409,376,611
 118,224,455
 527,601,066

564,975,377

 112,238,942
 (1,126,060)

 1,981,643
 19,250,934

 (108,276,151)
 (2,094,489)

 4,083,368
 26,058,187

591,033,564

4,247,065
 2,445,166
 1,394,509
 (200,311)
8,287,051

 19,670,473
 (482,892)

 10,320,219
 29,507,800

628,828,415
(14,477,601)

 7,445,172
 1,531,908

 (162,308,317)
 461,019,577

 (178,487,684)
 9,873,468

 (443,691,880)
 2,764,104

 (609,541,992)

 (38,381,757)
 (60,450,000)
 (98,831,757)

 (247,354,172)
 365,578,627
 118,224,455

Sd/- Sd/-
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Central Depository Company of Pakistan LimitedStatement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2009

Share
capital

Balance as at June 30, 2007
Change in equity for the year ended June 30, 2008
Available for sale securities:
      Valuation gains taken to equity
      Transferred to profit or loss on sale
Net income and expense recognized directly in equity

Profit for the year
Total recognized income and expense for the year
Issue of bonus shares @ 50%
Final dividend paid - 2007 @ 30%

Balance as at June 30, 2008

Changes in equity for the year ended June 30, 2008
Available for sale securities:
      Valuation gains taken to equity
      Transferred to profit or loss on sale
Net income and expense recognized directly in equity

Profit for the year

Total recognized income and expense for the year

Issue of bonus shares @ 65.426%

Balance as at June 30, 2009

100,000,000

-
-

-

100,000,000

-
-
-

-

-

-

100,000,000

*Reserve
fund

Surplus on
revaluation of
available for

sale securities

Unappropriated
profit

Total
Shareholders

Equity

201,500,000

-
-

-

100,750,000

302,250,000

-
-
-

-

-

197,750,000

500,000,000

The annexed notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chairman Chief Executive Officer

*The Reserve Fund is a revenue reserve which has been created in accordance with the requirements of the Articles of
Association of the Company.

749,471,500

-
-

 397,875,377
397,875,377

 (100,750,000)
(60,450,000)

986,146,877

-
-
-

175,808,459

175,808,459

(197,750,000)

 964,205,336

58,114,107

 70,726,813
 (108,276,151)

 (37,549,338)

 (37,549,338)

20,564,769

24,571,204
 (45,135,973)
(20,564,769)

-

(20,564,769)

-

-

1,109,085,607

 70,726,813
 (108,276,151)

(37,549,338)

 397,875,377
 360,326,039

 (60,450,000)

1,408,961,646

 24,571,204
 (45,135,973)
 (20,564,769)

175,808,459

155,243,690

-

 1,564,205,336

Rupees

Sd/- Sd/-
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Central Depository Company of Pakistan LimitedNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2009

1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (the Company) was incorporated as a public limited company on
January 21, 1993 and received certificate of commencement of business on August 10, 1994. The principal business
activity of the Company is to act as a depository for securities and to open securities account. The Company also acts
as a registrar to the issuer of securities. The registered office of the Company is situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block B,
S.M.C.H.S. Karachi, Pakistan.

The Company under trust deeds acts as a trustee for various open-end funds and closed-end schemes under the Non
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations Rules, 2008 and also provides custodialship to

 closed-end funds formed under the said rules.

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting standards as applicable
in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued
by International Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the Companies  Ordinance, 1984, provisions or and
directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions on directives or
the Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for measurement of available
for sale investments at the fair value, held to maturity investments at amortised cost as disclosed in note 3.6 and
recognition of staff retirment benefits on the actuarial valuation basis determined by the independent actuary as
disclosed in note 3.3.

In these financial statements, except for the cash flow statement, all the transactions have been accounted for on
accrual basis.

3.2 Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, incomes and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis
of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity or area where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the financial statements are as follows:

Notes

a) Staff retirement benefits 3.3
b) Useful life of operating property, plant and

equipment and intangible assets 3.4
c) Impairment of doubtful trade debts 3.8
d) Accrued liabilities 3.15
e) Provision for taxation 3.10.1
f) Deferred taxation 3.10.2

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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Central Depository Company of Pakistan LimitedNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2009

3.3 Staff retirement benefits

3.3.1 Defined benefit plan

The Company operates a defined benefit plan i.e. funded gratuity scheme for all its confirmed employees who have
completed minimum qualifying period of service as per the laid down rules. Contributions are made monthly to this
scheme on the basis of actuarial recommendations. Last actuarial valuation was carried out as at June 30, 2009 and
contributions are being made at the rates recommended by the actuary. Actuarial gains / losses exceeding 10% of the
higher of projected benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets are amortized over average future service of the
employees. The significant actuarial assumptions are stated in note 29.

3.3.2 Defined contribution plan

The Company also operates a defined contribution plan i.e. provident fund scheme for all its confirmed employees.
Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 10% of basic salary are made to the fund both by the company and the
employees.

3.3.3 Compensated absences

The Company has the policy to provide for encashable compensated absences of its employees in accordance with
respective entitlement on cessation of services, related expected cost there of has been recognised in the financial
statements.

3.4 Property, Plant and Equipments and Depreciation

Owned

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except for land which are stated
at cost. Individual items costing Rs. 5,000 or less are not capitalized and treated as a period cost. Borrowing cost is
dealt with as stated in note 3.5.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line method at the rates given in note 12.1 and is charged to income. Depreciation
on additions during the year is charged from the month of addition, while no depreciation is charged in the month of
retirement/disposal.

The assets’ residual value, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.

Normal repairs and maintenance costs are charged to income in the period of its occurrence, while major renovations
and improvements are capitalized. Gain or loss on disposal is taken to income.

Leased

The Company accounts for assets acquired under finance leases by recording the assets and the related liability. These
amounts are determined at the inception of lease, on the basis of the lower of the fair value and the present value of
minimum lease payments. Financial charges are allocated to the accounting period in a manner so as to provide a
constant rate of charge on the outstanding liability. Depreciation is charged to income applying the same basis as for
owned assets.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost. All expenditures connected to the specific assets incurred during installation
and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and
when assets are available for use.

3.4.1 Intangible assets and amortisation

Costs that are directly associated with identifiable software products controlled by the Company and have probable
economic benefit beyond one year are recognized as intangible assets.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. These are amortized
using the straight line method reflecting the pattern in which the economic benefits of the assets are consumed by
the Company.

Amortization is charged from the month of addition to the month preceding the month of retirement / disposal.

The amortization period for software is five years.
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Central Depository Company of Pakistan LimitedNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2009

3.5 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are interest or other costs incurred by the Company in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing cost that is directly attributable to a qualifying asset is capitalized as part of cost of that asset.

3.6 Investments

Initial recognition

Investments are recognised initially at cost including transaction costs associated with the investment except that are
incurred on investments at fair value through profit or loss, which is the fair value of the consideration given for it.

Subsequent measurement

The investments made by the Company are classified for the purpose of measurement into the following categories

Investments - held to maturity

Held to maturity investments are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity and the
Company has a positive intent and ability to hold these investments till maturity. Subsequent to the year end, these
are carried at amortized cost.

Investments  - available for sale

Investments intended to be held for indefinite period of time, which may be sold on response to needs for liquidity
or changes in equity prices, are classified as 'available for sale'. Available for sale financial instruments are those non-
derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables
(b) held to maturity investments (c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition,
these investments are marked to market using the closing market rates and are carried on the balance sheet at fair
value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of these investments are taken to shareholders' equity until
the investment is derocognized.

Fair value of the units of mutual funds is determined on the basis of redemption price of the respective units at the
valuation date.

Any impairment loss including that had been recognized directly in equity is removed from equity and recognized in
profit and loss account.

Derecognition

All investments are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

3.7 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses.

3.8 Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets are reviewed at balance sheet date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated and impairment losses
are recognized in the profit and loss account.

3.9 Foreign currency translations

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at
the balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Pakistan rupees at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the transaction date. Exchange gains or losses are taken to income currently.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

3.10 Taxation

3.10.1 Current 

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account
available tax credit and rebates, if any.
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Central Depository Company of Pakistan LimitedNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2009

3.10.2 Deferred

Deferred tax is provided by using balance sheet liability method for temporary differences between the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of
deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization on settlement of the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities using the tax rates enacted at the balance sheet date.

3.11 Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent are carried in the balance sheet at cost and amortized cost respectively. For the purpose of
cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents compromise cash and bank balances and short term investments as
stated in note 28.

3.12 Revenue recognition

Transaction fee for settlement of trades in eligible securities through Central Depository System (CDS) is recognized
in full upon settlement in CDS.

Custody fee is recognized on daily basis for balance of securities present in CDS on closing market value of last trading
session of last trading day of the month at the Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited.

Annual fee and CDS connection fee are recognized on the basis of contractual obligation.

Other fees are recognized when the Company renders the related services.

Income from trustee operations is recognized on the basis of average daily net asset value of the funds.

Gains and losses on sale of investments are accounted for in the year which it arises.

Return on fixed income securities and term deposits are recognized on time proportion basis.

3.13 Provisions

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

3.14 Financial instruments

Financial assets includes investments, loans and advances, deposits, trade debts, other receivables and cash and bank
and financial liabilities includes liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, deposits, trade and other payables.

3.14.1 Recognition 

Financial instruments are recognized when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each
item.

3.14.2 Derecognition

Financial assets are decognized at the time when the Company loses control of the contractual rights that comprise
the financial assets. Financial liablities are derecognized at the time when they are extinguished, that is, when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, or expired. Any gains or losses on derecognition of financial
assets and financial liablities are taken to the profit and loss account immediately.

3.14.3 Off - setting

Financial assets and liabilities are set-off and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if the company has a
legal right to set-off the transactions and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

3.15 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid
in future for services.
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3.16 Accounting standards not yet effective

The following revised standards and interpretations with respect to approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation:

Standard or Interpretation (accounting periods
beginning on or after 1st July, 2009) Effective date

IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements (Revised)  January 1, 2009

IAS 23 - Borrowings Costs (Revised) January 1, 2009

IAS 27 - Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (Revised) January 1, 2009

IFRS 3 - Business Combinations (Revised) July 1, 2009

IFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts January 1, 2009

IFRS 8 - Operating segments January 1, 2009

IFRIC 15 - Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate January 1, 2009

IFRIC 17 - Distributions of Non-cash Assets to owners July 1, 2009

IFRIC 18 - Transfers of Assets from Customers July 1, 2009

IFAS 2 - ljarah January 1, 2009

The Company expects that the above standards and interpretations are either not relevant or will have no material
impact on the Company’s financial statements in the period of initial application other than as stated below:

IAS I - “Presentation of Financial Statements”. The Standard separates owner and non-owner changes in equity. The
statement of changes in equity will include only details of transactions with owners, with non-owners changes in equity
presented as a single line. In addition, the standard introduces the statement of comprehensive income. It presents
all items of recognized income and expense, either in one single statement, or in two linked statements.

IAS 23 - “Borrowing Cost (Revised)”. This standard requires an entity to capitalize borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset. The option of
immediately expensing those borrowing cost has been removed.

IFRS 8 - “Operating Segment”. This standard required a ‘management approach’ under which segment information
is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes.

In addition to the above, amendments and improvements to various accounting standards have also been issued by
International Accounting Standards Board which are generally effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2009. The management is in the process of evaluating the impact of such amendments and improvements
on the Company's financial statements for the ensuing periods.

3.17 Dividend

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which it is approved by the
shareholders.

3.18 Related parties transactions

All transactions with related parties are carried out by the Company at arm's length prices. 

3.19 Capital Risk Management

The Company's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern
so that it can provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to maintain a strong capital
base to support the sustained development of its businesses.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light
of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
amount of dividend paid to shareholders or issue new shares.
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As at July 01

Issued during the year

Number of shares

2009 2008

10,000,000 10,000,000

4. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

4.1 Associated companies held 19,904,000 (2008: 12,031,968) shares in the company as at year end.

5. LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE

Under the lease agreements rentals are payable in 36 monthly instalments. Taxes, repairs, replacement and insurance
costs, if any, are borne by the company. The finances carry interest/mark-up rate of 11.72 percent to 13.41 percent
(2008: 11.72 percent to 13.41 percent per annum) which has been used as a discounting factor. The company can
exercise the purchase option by making payment of residual value of the leased assets at the expiry of the lease term.

Rupees

2009 2008

100,000,000 100,000,000

20,225,000
19,775,000
40,000,000

50,000,000

10,150,000
10,075,000
20,225,000

30,225,000

202,250,000
197,750,000
400,000,000

500,000,000

101,500,000
100,750,000
202,250,000

302,250,000

2009

Minimum lease
payments

Financial charges
allocated to future

periods

......Rupees......

Present value of
minimum lease

payments

2008

Minimum lease
payments

Financial charges
allocated to future

periods

......Rupees......

Present value of
minimum lease

payments

8,092,196

-

618,762

-

7,473,434

-

Upto one year

Between one year to

five years

8,092,196 618,762 7,473,434

9,926,589

8,092,196

18,018,785

1,494,355

618,762

2,113,117

8,432,234

7,473,434

15,905,668

Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
fully paid in cash

Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
issued as fully paid bonus shares
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2008 Rupees2009 Rupees

11 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

11.1 Contingencies

During the year 2006-07 a suit filed by a sub account holder (investor) was decreed against the Company and Lahore
Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited (LSE) by a single judge of Lahore High Court (LHC). The Company filed an
intra - court appeal before the LHC against the order before a Division Bench of the LHC. The Bench has admitted the
appeal for regular hearing. The bench has also stayed the execution of judgment/decree passed earlier by the single
judge. Accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial statements as the Company is of the view that it
was obliged by law and it’s own regulations to honour all instructions of LSE as pledgee and therefore it had no
involvement other than recording the call on the pledged shares and allowing the Central Depository System to transfer
the same from the account of the plaintiff in accordance with LSE’s call. The possible financial impact of the above
cannot be ascertained at this stage due to fluid nature of the case.

6.1 These represent security deposits received from different categories of Central Depository System (CDS) elements for
their admission in the CDS. According to regulation 3.8.4 of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited Regulations,
such deposits may be utilized by the Company for any purpose whatsoever and shall be refundable at the time of
termination of admission to the CDS.

6. LONG TERM DEPOSITS
Participants/Account Holders/Pledgees
Issuers

62,398,000
28,325,000
90,723,000

60,525,000
25,537,500
86,062,500

9 SHORT TERM DEPOSITS
Participants/Account Holders/Pledgees
Issuers

685,361
-

685,361

434,000
358,553
792,553

10 UNEARNED FEE
Annual fee

- Issuers
 - Investor Account Services

Fresh issue fee
Sub account maintenance fee

4,408,447
6,909,487
1,071,646
6,159,770

18,549,350

4,574,382
6,498,398
4,308,381
4,303,613

19,684,774

Note

-

573,300
573,300

23,073,300
22,500,000

1,805,650

573,300
2,378,950

24,428,950
22,050,000

3,958,197
67,501,561

3,785,562
27,283,803

6,998,409
262,464

109,789,996

1,286,809
100,840,327

5,158,754
27,104,656

-
202,554

134,593,101

29.1

8 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Payable to suppliers
Accrued expenses
Payable to employee retirement benefit funds
Investor Account Services - Current Account
Withholding tax payable
Others

2008 Rupees2009 RupeesNote7. DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred debits arising in respect of:
Staff retirement benefits

Provision for doubtful debts

Deferred credits arising in respect of:
Excess of accounting written down value over tax written

 down value of property, plant and equipment
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2008 Rupees
11.2 Commitments

Building contracts
 - Civil works
 - Electrical & air-conditioning works
 - Interior designing & furniture works
 - Structured cabling & other equipment

 - Project management & consultancy

18,335,712
14,886,542
15,911,135

5,922,011
1,026,389

56,081,789

51,998,392
-
-
-

1,903,436
53,901,828

2009 Rupees

New office at ISE Towers

Software, hardware & office equipments

-

3,090,880

9,390,500

29,109,764

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The following is a statement of property, plant and equipment:
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress

344,231,041
164,057,049
508,288,090

373,469,776
61,465,568

434,935,344

12.1
12.1.1

Note

Owned Assets

Cost as at
1 July
2008

Additions/
(deletions)/

transfers

Cost as at
30 Jun.

2009

Accumulated
depreciation
as at 1 July

2008

Depreciation
charge/

(on deletion)
for the period

Accumulated
depreciation
as at 30 Jun

2009

Book value
as at 30 Jun.

2009
Rate

Land
Building

Furniture, fixtures and
electrical equipments

Vehicles

Office equipments

Computer equipments

 -
 3,798,400

 (14,875)
 -

20,422,327
 (1,662,026)

 (3,850)

9,526,656
 (6,651,597)

 2,884,209

20,206,263
 (3,392,674)

 3,850

40,102,956
 (1,842,993)
 25,008,991

 -
17,198,231

64,399,924

22,560,133

78,420,524

205,773,437

 59,458,250
58,742,271

 42,534,833

27,851,090

37,748,933

96,417,615

5%

20%

20%

20%

25%

59,458,250
75,970,502

 107,322,921

42,020,068

114,324,106

207,289,244

 -
 -

 (30,000)

 1,742,134
 (2,097,298)

 (33,000)

12,132,861
 (8,548,706)

 4,807,000

5,399,223
 (3,586,872)

 33,000

 64,875,517
 (1,868,524)
 31,894,815

59,458,250
75,940,502

106,934,757

50,411,223

116,169,457

 302,191,052

 -
13,414,706

45,643,473

16,800,865

61,603,085

142,504,483

Leased Assets
Motor vehicles 400,583

(2,884,209)
 16,364,050

(25,008,991)
 16,764,633

-

-

29,489,911

29,489,911

20%

25%

4,807,000

82,862,775

87,669,775

-
-

(4,807,000)

-
(31,894,815)

-
-

 -

50,967,960

50,967,960

2,483,626

38,134,852

40,618,478

-

21,478,049

 21,478,049

June 30, 2009
(27,893,200)
110,821,235
(13,564,165)

-

417,842,160 344,231,041694,054,866
(36,701,815)
84,149,735

(16,131,400)
-

762,073,201
320,585,090

Computer Equipments

12.1 Property, Plant and equipment
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12.1.1  Capital Work in Progress

Note 2008 Rupees2009 Rupees

Opening balance

Additions

-Furniture, fixtures, electrical equipments & air conditioners

-Building

-Computers and office equipments

-Vehicles

Transferred to property plant equipment

61,465,568

1,850,850
128,664,205

44,093,300
12,132,861

186,741,216
248,206,784
(84,149,735)
164,057,049

4,952,927

20,141,098

52,280,331

43,204,741

12,478,715

128,104,885

133,057,812

(71,592,244)

61,465,568

12.1.2  All operating assets are routed through capital work in progress account.

12.2     Intangibles

The following is a statement of intangible assets

Software
Software under development

12.2.1

12.2.2

80,313,860
30,199,890

110,513,750

62,444,136

25,730,291

88,174,427

21,044,410

12,473,957
(17,413,911)

51,969,344

30,924,934

80,313,860

62,444,136

93,369,070

72,304,529

38,914,134

40,590,785
(19,526,244)

132,283,204

93,369,070

30,924,934

35,864,888

20%

20%

June 30, 2009

June 30, 2008

Cost as at
1 July
2008

Additions/
(deletions)/

transfers

Cost as at
30 Jun.

2009

Accumulated
amortization
as at 1 July

2008

Amortization
charge/

(on deletion)
for the year

Accumulated
amortization
as at 30 Jun

2009

Book value
as at 30 Jun.

2009
Rate

12.2     Software

Rupees

12.2.2  Software under development

Note 2008 Rupees2009 Rupees

Opening balance

Additions

Transferred software

25,730,291
43,383,733
69,114,024

(38,914,134)
30,199,890

15,873,278

50,447,798

66,321,076

(40,590,785)

25,730,291



81

Central Depository Company of Pakistan LimitedNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2009

Cost as at
1 July
2007

Additions/
(deletions)/

transfers

Cost as at
30 Jun.

2008

Accumulated
depreciation
as at 1 July

2007

Depreciation
charge/

(on deletion)
for the year

Accumulated
depreciation
as at 30 Jun

2008

Book value
as at 30 Jun.

2008
Rate

Free hold land
Building

Furniture, fixtures and
electrical equipments

Vehicles

Office equipments

Computers equipments

 -
 3,783,721

 17,938,076
 (17,978,256)

 7,598,574
 (4,968,571)

 1,505,365

12,978,233
 (9,161,229)
 17,509,712

 30,097,684
 (43,591,230)

 72,396,288
 (75,699,286)

 19,015,077

 -
 13,414,706

 45,643,473

16,800,865

61,603,085

 142,504,483

 279,966,612

59,458,250
62,555,796

 61,679,448

 25,219,203

 52,721,021

 64,784,761

 326,418,479

5%

20%

20%

20%

25%

59,458,250
75,461,993

 105,597,499

35,612,561

80,956,880

230,627,689

587,714,872

-
508,509

22,757,267
(21,031,845)

12,478,715
(8,347,283)

2,276,075

13,649,215
(9,464,893)
29,182,904

22,133,538
(45,471,983)

71,527,244
(84,316,004)

31,458,979

 59,458,250
75,970,502

107,322,921

 42,020,068

114,324,106

 207,289,244

606,385,091

 -
9,630,985

 45,683,653

12,665,497

40,276,369

 155,998,029

264,254,533

Leased Assets
Office equipments

Motor vehicles

Computer equipments

5,350,188

(17,509,712)

1,302,810

(1,505,365)
 20,715,698
 27,368,696

 (19,015,077)
 99,764,983

 (75,699,286)

 -

 2,483,626

38,134,852
 40,618,478

 320,585,090

20%

20%

25%

29,182,904

 7,083,075

82,862,775
119,128,754

 706,843,626

 -

(29,182,904)

 -

(2,276,075)
 -
 -

 (31,458,979)
 71,527,244

 (84,316,004)

 -

4,807,000

 82,862,775
 87,669,775

 694,054,866

 12,159,524

2,686,181

17,419,154
 32,264,859

 296,519,392

 -

2,323,374

44,727,923
 47,051,297

 373,469,776June 30, 2008

Owned Assets

12.3  Details of Disposal of Fixed Assets through bid / Negotiation having Net Book Value of Rs. 50,000 or above:

Asset type
Cost

Vehicles

AGD-744

AGL-960

AHS-281

AJJ-896

AJJ-893

ALH-854

AMF-716

Office equipment

Accumulated
depreciation

Written Down
 Value Sale proceeds Profit/(Loss)

on disposal Particulars
of buyer

Mr. Wasim Mirza

Mr. Junaid

Mr. Jawaid

Mr. Fiza

Mr. Mudassir
Mr. Haseebuddin (employee)

Mr. Jawaid

Donation*

795,000

1,002,500

609,000

639,000

639,000

1,218,000

620,000

5,522,500

151,000
5,673,500

675,750

868,823

446,600

415,350

415,350

609,000

258,329

3,689,202

80,542
3,769,744

119,250

133,677

162,400

223,650

223,650

609,000

361,671

1,833,298

70,458
1,903,756

611,111

843,876

512,000

400,000

407,300

1028,786

625,000

4,428,073

-
4,428,073

491,861

710,199

349,600

176,350

183,650

419,786

263,329

2,594,775

(70,458)
2,524,317

Rupees

* None of the directors or their spouse have any interest in the donee.

Rupees
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13.1 The Company has investments in debt securities of National Saving Scheme. These are measured at 

amortized cost using the effective interest method. The rate of profit on these securites varies from 

13% to 15.20%.

13.2 This represent initial contribution as promoter of an Institute of Capital Market formed under section

42 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984.

14  LONG TERM LOANS

Considered good - secured

-     Housing loan

-     Car loan

-     Transferred to current maturity

Loan outstanding for period:
Less than three years

More than three years

7,555,136
8,331,729

15,886,865
(3,931,614)
11,955,251

6,930,471
5,024,780

11,955,251

8,945,508

6,218,942

15,164,450

(3,480,663)

11,683,787

5,897,117

5,786,670

11,683,787

14.1 & 14.2

17

13.1

13.2

538,474,250
1,000,000

539,474,250

-

500,000

500,000

Held-to-maturity investment - unquoted debt securities

Available-for-sale investment - unquoted

2008 RupeesNotes 2009 Rupees13  LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

14.1 Interest @ 3% per annum on reducing balance is recovered on housing and car loan and taken to income

currently; however, no interest is recovered from employees who surrendered interest on their provident

fund. Maximum repayment period for housing and car loan is fifteen and five years respectively.

14.2 Housing Loan includes balance amount of interest free housing loan of Rs. 2.2 million (2008: Rs. 2.9 million)

availed by the Chief Executive Officer with an original tenure of eight years duly approved by the Securities

and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

14.3 The carrying amount of long term loans is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value.

15  LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Utilities

Rented premises

Clubs membership

Prepayments

3,863,618
3,643,440

250,000
7,757,058

27,153
7,784,211

2,925,618

3,450,840

-

6,376,458

732,002

7,108,460

15.1 The carrying amount of long term deposits is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value.

2008 RupeesNotes 2009 Rupees

2008 RupeesNotes 2009 Rupees
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Considered good:
-  secured
-  unsecured

Considered doubtful

Provision for impairment

31,555,845
27,894,391
59,450,236

1,637,542
61,087,778
(1,637,542)
59,450,236

24,130,033

51,120,305

75,250,338

1,637,542

76,887,880

(1,637,542)

75,250,338

2008 Rupees2009 Rupees16 TRADE DEBTS

16.1 The net carrying amount of trade debts is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value.

16.2 All the trade debts have been reviewed for indication of impairment. Certain trade debts were found to be
impaired and consequently provision of Rs.1,637,542 (2008: Rs.1,637,542) was recorded. The impaired trade
debts are due from terminated participants and investor account holders of Rs. 1,234,432 and Rs. 403,050
respectively, that are experiencing financial difficulties.

1,637,542
-

1,637,542

1,746,659

(109,117)

1,637,542

During the year

As at June 30, 2009

16.3 Trade debts include receivable from associated persons and companies (related parties) amounting to Rs.

3.347 million (2008: Rs. 3.604  million).

16.4 The maximum aggregate amount of receivable from associated persons and companies at the end of any

month during the year was Rs.19.282 million (2008: Rs. 3.800 million).

17 LOANS AND ADVANCES

Loans to employees - considered good and secured

Advances - considered good & unsecured

-    to employees

-    for expenses

14 3,931,614

976,673
425,870

1,402,543
5,334,157

3,480,663

822,320

618,746

1,441,066

4,921,729

Notes

17.1 The carrying amount is considered reasonable approximation of fair value.

17.2 All loans and advances have been reviewed for impairment and none of the loans and advances was found
to be impaired.

18 OTHER RECEIVABLES

18.1 The carrying amount is considered reasonable approximation of fair value.

18.2 This includes receivable from National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (related party) amounting to
Rs. 0.526  million (2008: Rs. 0.417 million)

18.3 All the other receivables have been reviewed for impairment and none of the other receivable was found
to be impaired.

16.2

2008 Rupees2009 Rupees

The movement in the provision for impairment can be reconciled as follows:

As at July 1, 2008

2008 Rupees2009 Rupees
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19.1 & 28 518,023,948
-

518,023,948

101,285,890

929,175,520

1,030,461,410

Held-to-maturity investments - unquoted debt securities

Available-for-sale investments - quoted

2008 RupeesNotes 2009 Rupees19 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

19.1 This represents investment in fixed Term Deposit Certificates. The rate of profit on these certificates varies

from 12.75 percent to 12.85 percent per annum (2008: 9.90 percent to 12.90 percent per annum) realisable on

maturity dates, falling before August 24, 2009.

20 TAX REFUNDABLE

During the year, Income Tax Officer has passed orders in respect of assessment years 2000-01 and 2001-02,

whereby refunds of Rs. 317,828 and Rs.9,806,546 have been determined respectively.

21 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

8,804,250
653,241
119,627

9,577,118

15,954,750

837,174

146,641

16,938,565

Cash at bank

-    in deposit and saving accounts

-    in current accounts

Cash in hand

22 OPERATING INCOME

Initial deposit fee

Transaction fee - net

Custody fee

Processing fee

CDS connection fee

Sub account maintenance fee

Annual fee

Trusteeship and custodial businesses

RSA service charges

Facility management fee - NCCPL

Withdrawal fee

Fresh issue fee

Cancellation fee

Share registrar services

Miscellaneous

 33,360,307
 84,000,290

 203,066,756
 13,437,474
 26,685,000
 25,913,643
 63,489,389

 197,086,992
 3,206,150

 -
 2,281,027

 61,729,883
 3,143,739
 2,791,788
 9,875,840

 730,068,278

 28,902,919

 184,068,613

 311,530,907

 16,365,928

 20,429,000

 22,164,678

 57,451,609

 261,789,367

 3,207,000

 1,155,000

 5,274,984

 80,634,847

 10,612,951

 64,045

 4,503,900

 1,008,155,748

22.1

22.1 Transaction Fee - net

Transaction fee

Less: SECP Levy
104,333,634
(20,333,344)

84,000,290

229,022,172

(44,953,559)

184,068,613

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) imposed a levy of 0.000405 paisa per share on transaction

fee with effect from November 01, 2004, which is borne by the company.

2008 RupeesNotes 2009 Rupees
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Notes 2008 Rupees2009 Rupees

Salaries and other benefits

Travelling and conveyance

Vehicle running and maintenance

Training and development

Communication

Printing and stationery

Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Repairs and maintenance

Legal and professional charges

Auditors' remuneration

Fee and subscription

Advertisement and publicity

Office supplies

Meeting expenses

WAN line rent

Newspapers, periodicals and journals

Depreciation

Amortisation

Fuel and electricity

Security services

Donation

Cafeteria

Miscellaneous

23.1 & 23.2

23.3

12.1

12.2

23.4

 288,311,528
 4,719,029

 10,046,888
 3,439,635

 10,646,524
 7,212,302

 23,777,031
 15,496,687
 49,371,037

 8,396,192
 1,213,950
 6,968,984
 4,957,004
 3,268,147

 867,915
 11,390,875

 182,106
 110,821,235

 21,044,410
 23,090,767

 4,402,558
 6,544,934
 3,670,752
 2,187,072

 622,027,562

 242,652,193

 7,019,191

 8,957,119

 6,221,849

 9,377,030

 6,823,498

 20,536,528

 14,786,562

 44,251,918

 9,097,691

 874,133

 3,171,443

 15,703,582

 2,242,477

 565,661

 12,662,315

 184,193

 99,764,985

 12,473,957

 19,296,789

 3,938,162

 14,500,000

 3,467,381

 2,605,158

 561,173,815

23.1 Salaries and other benefits includes:

-    Gratuity

-    Contribution to Provident Fund

21,488,613
12,073,892

19,250,934

9,173,678

23.2 Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Executives:

Managerial remuneration

Gratuity

Provident fund

Number of persons

17,968,738

874,800

585,936

19,429,474

1

74,689,314

4,919,709

3,213,043

82,822,066

34

Chief Executive
Officer

18,554,676
1,364,130

732,420
20,651,226

1

102,801,147
9,011,891
4,761,376

116,574,414
49

Executives Chief Executive
Officer Executives

20082009

Rupees

23 OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

23.2.1 The aggregate amount charged in financial statement in respect of directors' fee paid was Rs. 195,000 (2008: Rs.47,500)

23.2.2 Managerial remuneration also includes bonus of Rs. 23.07 million (2008: Rs. 26.17million) for the year ended
June 30, 2009 approved by the Board in its 129th meeting held on 25th June, 2009.         

23.2.3 The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and executives are provided with company maintained cars. In addition,
the CEO and executives are also entitled for other benefits in accordance with the terms of employment.
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Notes 2008 Rupees2009 Rupees23.3 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

725,000
175,000

77,950
236,000

1,213,950

650,000

125,000

74,133

25,000

874,133

Audit fee

Half year review fee

Out of pocket expenses

Others

24 OTHER INCOME

 8,647,478
 92,312,811
 45,135,973

 114,741
 (473,135)
 2,875,972

 235,625
 148,849,465

 2,094,489

 10,702,669

 108,276,151

 112,571

 (1,981,643)

 1,126,060

 1,871,550

 122,201,847

Return on bank deposits

Return on investments - held to maturity

Gain on sale of marketable securities

Interest on loan to employees

Write-off of property, plant and equipment 

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment

Others

25 FINANCIAL CHARGES

1,494,357
143,394

1,637,751

4,083,368

125,035

4,208,403

Financial charges on leased assets

Bank charges

The income tax assessments of the Company have been finalised up to and including tax year 2008. The  Company
appeal for the assessment year 2002-03 is pending with the Commissioner of Income Tax Appeals. However, adequate
provision has been made in the financial statements in this regard.

26 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(81,000,000)
2,006,029
(450,000)

(79,443,971)

(163,500,000)

-

(3,600,000)

(167,100,000)

Current

Prior

Deferred

26.1 Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit before taxation

Tax charge at enacted rate of 35 percent (2008: 35 percent)

Effect of taxable / (deductible) expenses

Tax effect of exempt income

Others

 255,252,430

 89,338,351
 450,000

 (15,797,591)
 5,453,211

 79,443,971

 564,975,377

 197,741,382

 3,600,000

 (37,896,653)

 3,655,271

 167,100,000
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29.2 Movement in net liability / (assets) recognised
Opening balance
Expense recognized
Contributions during the year
Closing net liability

5,158,754
21,488,613

(22,861,805)
3,785,562

385,421
19,250,934

(14,477,601)
5,158,754

29.3 Movement in the actuarial losses during the year:
Opening unrecognized actuarial losses
Net actuarial losses during the year

Actuarial losses recognized in profit and loss
Closing unrecognized actuarial losses

15,563,747
13,375,753
28,939,500

529,902
28,409,598

8,404,981
7,275,592

15,680,573
116,826

15,563,747

28 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances
Short term investments

9,577,118
518,023,948
527,601,066

16,938,565
101,285,890
118,224,455

21

19

2008 Rupees27 EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit after taxation

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Basic and diluted earnings per share

175,808,459

50,000,000
3.52

397,875,377

50,000,000
7.96

2009 RupeesNotes

Number of Shares

The gratuity scheme benefit is payable on the basis of last drawn salary for each year of eligible service or part thereof in
accordance with the rules of the gratuity scheme.

The obligations under the scheme were determined through an actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit method.
The significant assumptions of the valuation were:

discount rate 14 % (2008: 12%) per annum compound;
expected rate of increase in salaries 14% (2008: 12%) per annum; and
expected rate of return on investment 14% (2008: 12%) per annum.

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

29.1 The amounts recognized in balance sheet are as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

Unrecognized actuarial losses
Net liability

121,550,000
(89,354,840)

32,195,160
(28,409,598)

3,785,562

92,049,260
(71,326,759)

20,722,501
(15,563,747)

5,158,754

29.4 The following amounts have been charged in the profit and loss account in respect of these benefits:
Current service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Actuarial losses recognised

18,472,011
11,045,911
(8,559,211)

529,902
21,488,613

18,255,068
6,886,236

(6,007,196)
116,826

19,250,934

2008 Rupees2009 Rupees
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2008 Rupees2009 RupeesNotes29.5  Movement in the fair value of plan assets during the year
Opening balance

Expected return

Contribution by employer

Benefits paid

Actuarial gains / (losses)

Closing balance

71,326,759
8,559,211

22,861,805
(12,837,923)

(555,012)
89,354,840

60,071,964
6,007,196

14,477,601
(7,889,279)
(1,340,723)
71,326,759

Rent of premises paid to:

- Karachi Stock Exchange

- Lahore Stock Exchange

- Islamabad Stock Exchange

Rent expense:

- Karachi Stock Exchange

- Lahore Stock Exchange

- Islamabad Stock Exchange

The shareholders and directors of the Company are acting as CDS elements in their normal course of business. Total

revenue from transactions in CDS relating to shareholders and directors, are as follows:

Shareholders

Directors

Billings to the Companies which are associated by virtue of common directorship.

Annual fee

Fresh issue fee

Cancelation fee

Initial Deposit / Processing Fee

Transaction fee

Custody fee

CDS Connection fee

Transactions with NCCPL 

Contributions to retirement benefit plans

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial or operational decisions and includes major shareholders, associated companies
with or without common directors, retirement benefit funds and directors and key management personnel and their
close family members. Amounts due from/to related parties, and remuneration of directors and executives are disclosed
in the relevant notes.

Other material transactions with the related parties are given below:

31    TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

These figures are based on the latest actuarial valuation, as at June 30, 2009. The valuation uses the Projected Unit
Credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are amortised over the expected future service life of current members.

The Company recognises expense in accordance with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”.

30    EMPLOYEES
Number of employees as on 30 June 341 358

10,150,800
158,191
515,317

10,824,308

9,228,000

3,120,000

412,224

12,760,224

10,150,800
1,418,697

515,317
12,084,814

9,228,000

1,248,000

412,224

10,888,224

2008 Rupees2009 Rupees

 25,029,718

 271,899

 1,305,750

 4,321,414

 1,450,000

 3,761,531

 3,242,836

 6,629,166

 1,066,000

 5,413,079

34,935,697

 20,699,049

 1,133,341

 182,750

 1,785,701

 -

 1,393,127

 2,005,355

 3,766,470

314,500

 8,703,405

 26,551,493
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The company continues to have a policy whereby all transactions with related parties are entered into at arm's length

prices using the comparable uncontrolled valuation method.

The company has not entered into any transaction with senior executives other than those provided under the

company's policies and terms of employment.

Effective
mark-up
rates (%)

Less than
one year

Over one
year  to

five years
Over five

years

Non
Mark-up
 bearing

Total

Financial assets
Long term investments
Loans and advances
Deposits
Trade debts
Markup accrued
Other receivables
Short-term investments
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities
Liabilities against assets subject
to finance lease
Deposits
Trade and other payables

539,474,250
 17,289,408

 7,757,058
 59,450,236

 167,199
 1,738,055

 518,023,948
 9,577,118

 1,153,477,272

 7,473,434
 91,408,361

 106,004,434

204,886,229

14.75-16.61
3.00

12.75-12.85
5.00-11.00

 12.82-13.41

 -
 5,334,157

 -
 -

 167,199
 -

 518,023,948
 8,804,250

 532,329,554

 7,473,434
 -
 -

 7,473,434

538,474,250
 2,353,394

 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -

 540,827,644

 -
 -
 -

 -

-
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -

 -
 -
 -

 -

1,000,000
 9,601,857
 7,757,058

 59,450,236
 -

 1,738,055
 -

 772,868
 80,320,074

 -
 91,408,361

 106,004,434

197,412,795

Mark-up bearing

2009 Rupees

32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

32.1 Fair values of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount at which an asset could be exchanged or liability settled between knowledgeable 

willing parties in  an arm's length transaction. The company prepares its financial statements under the 

historical cost convention except for measurement of available for sale investments at the fair value, held 

to maturity investments at amortised cost and  recognition of staff retirment benefits on the acturial valuation

basis.The estimated fair values of all financial instruments are not significantly different from their carrying

values on June 30, 2009.

32.2 The Company's exposure to interest rate risk and the effective rates on its financial assets and liabilities are

summarized as follows:
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Effective
mark-up
rates (%)

Less than
one year

Over one
year  to

five years
Over five

years

Non
Mark-up
 bearing

Total

Financial assets
Long term investments
Loans and advances
Deposits
Trade debts
Markup accrued
Short-term investments
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities
Liabilities against assets subject
to finance lease

Deposits
Trade and other payables

500,000
 16,605,516

 6,376,458
 75,250,338

 179,887
 1,030,461,410

 728,831
 16,938,565

 1,147,041,005

15,905,668

86,855,053
 129,434,347
 232,195,068

 -
 3
 -
 -

9.90 - 12.90

3 - 7.5

 8.06 - 13.41

-
 -

 -
 4,921,729

 -
 -

 179,887
 101,285,890

 -
 15,954,750

 122,342,256

 8,432,234

 -
 -

 8,432,234

 -
 2,254,311

 .
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -

 2,254,311

 7,473,434

 -
 -

 7,473,434

-
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -

 -

 -

 -

 500,000
 9,429,476
 6,376,458

 75,250,338
 -

 929,175,520
 728,831
 983,815

 1,022,444,438

-

86,855,053
 129,434,347
 216,289,400

Mark-up bearing

2008 Rupees

* These represent investments in units of open ended mutual funds.

32.3 Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause to other
party to incur a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk amounting to Rs. 31,099,657(2008:
Rs. 53,290,202). The company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures limiting transactions
with specific parties and continually assessing the credit worthiness of counter parties.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of financial assets 
recognised at the reporting date.

The Company's management considers that all the above financial assets that are not impaired or past due
for each of the reporting dates under review are of good credit quality.

In respect of trade debts, the company is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure as the Company
possesses liquid assets of the trade debts.

None of the Company's other financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit enhancement.

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalent and investments are considered negligible, since the counterparties
are reputable banks and institute with high quality external credit ratings.

32.4 Foreign exchange risk management

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies.
The company is exposed to foreign currency risk on purchases that are entered in a currency other than
Pak Rupees. The Company uses forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk, when
considered appropriate.
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32.5 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk reflects the company's inability of raising funds to meet commitments. Management closely 

monitors the Company's liquidity and cash flow position. This includes maintenance of balance sheet liquidity

ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in terms of the overall funding mix and avoidance of undue

reliance on large individual customers.

As at June 30, 2009, the Company's liabilities have contractual maturities as summarised below:

Liabilities against assets subject
to finance lease
Deposits
Trade and other payable

 1,849,200
 685,361

 109,789,996
 112,324,557

 5,624,234
-
-

 5,624,234

 7,473,434
 685,361

 109,789,996
 117,948,791

-
-
-
-

within 6
months
Rupees

Sub
Total

Rupees

Non Current

within 6-12
months
Rupees

1 to 5
years

Rupees

later than
5 years
Rupees

Sub
Total

Rupees
Total

Rupees

Current

-
90,723,000

 -
 90,723,000

-
90,723,000

 -
 90,723,000

 7,473,434
 91,408,361

 109,789,996
 208,671,791

As at June 30, 2008, the Company's liabilities have contractual maturities as summarised below:

Liabilities against assets subject
to finance lease
Deposits
Trade and other payable

 5,385,325
 792,553

 134,593,101
 140,770,979

 3,046,909
 -
 -

 3,046,909

 8,432,234
 792,553

 134,593,101
 143,817,888

 7,473,434
 -
 -

 7,473,434

within 6
months
Rupees

Sub
Total

Rupees

Non Current

within 6-12
months
Rupees

1 to 5
years

Rupees

later than
5 years
Rupees

Sub
Total

Rupees
Total

Rupees

Current

 -
 86,062,500

 -
 86,062,500

 7,473,434
 86,062,500

 -
 93,535,934

 15,905,668
 86,855,053

 134,593,101
 237,353,822

35 DATE OF AUTHORISATION

These financial statements were approved in the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on August 6, 2009.

Chairman Chief Executive Officer

33 PRESENTATION AND FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY

The financial statements have been presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional and

presentation currency.

34 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The Directors in their meeting held on August 6, 2009 have proposed a cash dividend of Rs. 3 per share

(2008: cash dividend nil and stock dividend @ 65.426 percent of paid-up capital) of Rs. 10 each i.e. 30 percent in 

respect of year ended June 30, 2009. The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2009 do not include the

effect of the above dividend which will be accounted for in the period in which it is declared.

Sd/- Sd/-
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

No. of Shareholders
shareholding from 10,000 to 50,000 shares

shareholding from 50,001 to 350,000 shares

shareholding from 350,001 to 500,000 shares

shareholding from 500,001 to 900,000 shares

shareholding from 900,001 to 2,500,000 shares

shareholding from 2,500,001 to 4,000,000 shares

shareholding from 4,000,001 to 5,000,000 shares

shareholding from 5,000,001 to 19,904,000 shares

Total

50,000

574,999

1,000,000

875,000

6,250,000

6,346,001

15,000,000

19,904,000

50,000,000

Shareholdings Total shares held

Categories of Shareholders
Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their spouse and minor children

Associated companies, undertakings and related parties
• The Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited

• Lahore Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited

• MCB Bank Limited

• Islamabad Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited

NIT and IDBP
• National Investment Trust Limited

• Industrial Development Bank of Pakistan

Banks/DFIs/NBFIs
• MCB Bank Limited

• Habib Bank Limited

• National Investment Trust Limited

• Industrial Development Bank of Pakistan

• NIB Bank Limited

• Al-Zamin Leasing Corporation Limited

• Innovative Investment Bank Limited

Insurance Companies
• IGI Insurance Limited

Modarabas and Mutual Funds

Shareholders holding 10% (or more)
• The Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited

• Lahore Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited

• MCB Bank Limited

• Citibank Overseas Investment Corporation

General Public
a. Local

b. Foreign

Others
• Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited

• Shakarganj Mills Limited

• Crescent Standard Business Management (Pvt.) Ltd.

–

19,904,000

5,000,000

5,000,000

1,250,000

3,173,000

2,500,000

Shares held Percentage

5,000,000

3,173,001

3,173,000

2,500,000

2,500,000

500,000

250,000

324,999

–

19,904,000

5,000,000

5,000,000

5,000,000

–

–

875,000

500,000

50,000

–

39.80

10.00

10.00

2.50

6.35

5.00

10.00

6.35

6.35

5.00

5.00

1.00

0.50

0.65

–

39.80

10.00

10.00

10.00

–

–

1.75

1.00

0.10

June 30, 2009



PROXY FORM

CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

We, ___________________________ of ___________, being a member of Central Depository Company of

Pakistan Limited hereby appoint ____________________ or failing him ____________________

of ____________________ as our Proxy in our absence to attend and vote for us, and on our behalf at the

Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on _______________, 2009 or at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my hand this ___________ day of _____________ 2009  signed by the said.

Signature of Appointer (Revenue stamp of Rs. 5/-)

(Name & Designation)

Specimen Signature of Proxy Specimen Signature of Proxy

WITNESS 1

Signature:_______________________

Name:__________________________

Designation:_____________________

Address:________________________

CNIC No.:______________________

WITNESS 2

Signature:_______________________

Name:__________________________

Designation:_____________________

Address:________________________

CNIC No.:______________________
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